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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Resinova Chemie Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Resinova Chemie Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2(s) to the Ind AS financial statements which describes that the
Company had recognised Goodwill on amalgamation during the financial year ended March 31,
2015, which is being amortised over a period of seven years from the appointed date {that is
November 20, 2014), in accordance with the accounting treatment prescribed under the Scheme
of amalgamation approved by the Gujarat High Court.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our anditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fruud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objeclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial stalements.

As part ol an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatemeat resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concemn basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncenainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concemn.

« Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on
our audit we give in the “Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income. the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Stundards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer 1o our separate Report in “Annexure 2” 1o this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 32 1o the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110957
UDIN: 201 10759AAAABU1367

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2020
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Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements of our report of even date of Resinova Chemie Limited for the year ended
March 31, 2020

()

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and silwation of Property, plant and equipment:

(b) The Property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the management according
to a phased programme designed to cover all the item s over a period of three years which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property. plant and equipment has been
physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds
of immovable properties held as in property. plant and equipment are in the name of the
company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.
(a) The Company has granted loans to one Company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans
are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

(b) The Company has granted loans to one Company covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment are regular.

(¢) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the

register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for
more than ninety days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to directors including
entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given, investments
made and, guarantees, and securitics given have been complied with by the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable and hence not commented upon.
We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to
the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of Adhesives, and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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(vii) a) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of

the company, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.
b) According 1o the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of
custom, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following.

Name of the | Nature of | 2™U™S | period to which | Forum where the dispute is
(NR In :

Statute the Dues Mn)* amounts relates | pending

Central Excise | Excise 0 FY 2016-17 & Assistant Commissioner

Act,1944 Duty FY 2017-18 Central Excise.

West  Bengal | oo Tax | © FY 2005-06 Tax Tribunal

Sales Tax Act

West  Bengal | g jocax | ! FY 2006-07 Tax Board

Sales Tax Act

West  Bengal 5 .

Suloe Tax ;‘L;“ Entry Tax FY 2014-15 High Court (West Bengal)

UP Stamp Act SD‘:::;"’ . FY 2007-08 High Court (Aliahabad)

* The Amounts shown as “0" are amount below 0.5 Mn INR.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings from banks. The
Company did not have any due payable to the financial institutions, debenture holders and
government during the year.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments)
and term loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

(xi) According 1o the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial

remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated

by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause

3(xii) of the order are not applicable o the Company and hence not commented upon.
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(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination
of the balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review
and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not spplicable to the Company
and not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to
be registered under section 451A of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

ForSRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra
Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDN: 20110759AAAABU1367

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2020
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Anncxure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Ind AS Financial
Statements of Resinova Chemie Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of Resinova Chemie
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companics Act, 2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both tssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference (o these Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audil of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
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including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Ind AS financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expendilures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company'’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial staternents, including the possibility of cellusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial contrals over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 1o these Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SRBC& COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

per Anil Jobanputra

Partner

Membership Number: 110759
UDN: 201 10759AAAABU1367

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2020




RESINOVA CHEMIE UMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020
[Rs. In Millon)
As at Asat
Partculars Notes | paren 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3{A) 1,459 1.421
{b} Capital work-In-progress 18 32
{c) Goodwill 3{B) 603 971
{d} Other intangible assets 3{8) 6 6
{e) Right of Use Assets (ROU} 3{C) 72
{f) Financial assets
(i) Loans 4 0 2
{ii} Other financial assats 5 13 9
{g} Other non-current assets 6 8 14
Total non-current assets 1,180 2,455
Current assets
{a} Inventories 7 953 7
{b) Financial assets
{)} Trade raceivables B 451 745
{il} Cash and cash equivalents 9 13 283
(iii} Bank balances other than {ii) above 10 561 1
(v} Loans 4 1 3
(v) Other financial assets 5 3 2
{€) Current tax assets {Net) 11 26 27
[d) Other current assets 6 122 28
Tatal current assets 2,135 1,806
Total assets 4,315 4,261
EQUITY AND LIABIUTIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capital 12 3 3
[b} Other equlty 13 3,419 3,317
Total equity 3,422 3,380
Uabilities
Non-current Babilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{l} Borrowings 14 28 236
{ii) Lease Habilitles 37 8 -
{b} Provisions 15 15 15
{c) Deferred taxliabilities {Net) 16 50 61
Tatal non-current Habilitles 101 312




Asat As at
Particulars Notes | mMarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current liabilitles
{a) Financial iabilities
{1} Lease liabilities 37 13 -
(ii) Trade payables 17
a total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - S
small enterprises
b total outstanding dues of creditors other than 433 102
micrg enterprises and small enterprises
[iii) Qther finandial itabilities 18 280 63
{b) Other current llabilities 19 52 a0
{c} Provisions 15 14 12
{d} Current tax Habilitres {Net) 20 - 12
Total current Habilitles 792 569
Total Habilitles 893 831
Total equity and liabilities 4,315 4,261
See accompanying notes to the financlal statements
As per report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of

Chartered Accountants Py
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982E/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra

Partner Chiarman & Managing Director
Membership No.: 110759 DIN ; DO0ET112

Place : Mumbai Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 25, 2020 Date ; May 25, 2020




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. In million, except as stated otherwise)

Year ended Year anded
Particulars Not® | Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Income
Revenue from operations 21 am 4,370
Other income 22 14 4
Total 3,785 4,414
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 2,843 2,795
Purchase of stock-in-trade 24 5 3
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-In-trade and work- 15 {253} 5
in-progress
Employee benefits expense 26 425 334
Finance costs 27 28 11
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 ar7 447
Other expenses 29 620 602
Total 3,745 4,157
Profit bafore tax 40 217
Tax expensa 30
a) Current tax a7 48
b) Mat Credit Entitement . (47)
c} Deferred tax {49) 75
Totzl Tax expense {2} 76
Profit for the year 42 141
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements {galn)/loss on defined benefit plans 0 0
Tatal other comprehensive income 0 0
Tatal camprehensive income for the year 42 141
Earnings per equity share [Face value of Rs. 10/- each) 3t
- Basie {in Rs.) 14291 479.34
- Diluted (in Rs.} 142.81 479.34

See accompanying notes to the financdal statements

As per report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP F
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 324982£/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner

Membership No.: 110759
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 25, 2020

{Sandeep P. Engi
Chiarman & Managing Director
DIN : 00067112

Place : Ahmedabad

Date : May 25, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
esincva Chemie Limited




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Equity share capital (Note 12)

{Rs. Ia Million)

Particulars Amount
Balance &t April 1, 2018 3
Add: mevement during the year &
Balance at March 31, 2019 3
Add: movement during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2020 3
Other Equity (Note 13} {Rs. In Million)
_ Other Equity Total
Partieulars Securities Premium | Retalned eamings Other Equity
Balance at April 1, 2018 3,048 188 3,236
Profit for the year - 141 141
Other comprehensive income {or the year, net of income tax - 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the year - 141 141
Balance at March 31, 2019 3,048 329 3,377
Profit for the year - 42 42
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - 0 0
Total comprehensive income for the year - 42 42
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,048 37t 3,419

See accompanying notes to the finandal statements

As per report of even date

For SRB C&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.. 324982E/E300003

Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner ’
Membership No.: 110759 §q {
Place : Mumbai

Date : May 25, 2020

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
Resinova Chemie Limited

{5a p P. Engine!

br}

N U24295G12009PLCO58120

Chiarman & Managing Directer

DIN : 00067112
Place - Ahmedabad

Date . May 25, 2020




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Rs. In Miillion)

Sr Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A. [Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit before tax 40 217
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 477 447
Bad Debts occurred - 0
Finance Costs 28 11
Allowance for expected credit loss 11 -
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 1 1
Gain on Sale and purchase of Current Investments{net} {6 {2)
Interest Income 7 1]
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain} (Net) 18 (12)
Operating profit before Working Capital Changes 562 662
Changes in working capital:
Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables, financial liabilitles other liabilities and provisions 8 {44)
{Incraase)/Decrease In Inventories {236) {11)
{Increase)/Decrease In Trade receivables, financial assets and other assets 191 {952}
Cash generated from operations 525 518
Income taxes paid {20] (28]
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities ( A ) 505 487
B. |Cash flow from investing Activities
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 2 2
Payment for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets{including capital advances {164) {220)
and capital creditors)
Gain on Sale and purchase of Current Investments{nat) 6 2
Interest received 6 4]
Increasa/{Decrease} in other balances with banks {560 0
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activitles (B ) {710) {216)
C. (Cash Flow from Financing Activitles
Repayment of Long term Borrowings (16) {16}
Finance Cost {27) {11}
Payment of Lease Uiabilitles (| :
Net Cash flow used in Financing Activities { C ) {60}l {27}
|NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B+C) 265 244
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Nate 9} 283 39
Effect of exchange differences on restatement of forelgn currency cash and cash equivalents - [¢]
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year {Note 9) 1B 283

Nota The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared as per ‘Indirect Method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on Statement of Cash Flow.




Changes In llahiities arising from financing activities

{Rs. In Milllan)

Particulars Non-current Current Total
barrowings® borrowings
Balance as at April 1, 2018 276 - 76
Cash flows (16) . [16}}
Forelgn exchange adjustments (B) - (8}
Balance as at March 31, 2019 52 - 252
Cash flows {16) - {16)
Forelgn exchange adjustments 14 - 14
Balance as at March 31, 2020 250 - 250

* Long term borrowings including current maturities ¢lassified in Other Financial liabilities.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per report of even date
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RESINOVA CHEMIE LEMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW:-

Resingva Chemie Limited (RCL) Is engaged in manufacturing of various types of Adhesives and is a Limited
Company. The Company is Subsidiary of Astral Poly Technik Limited {APL), a listed Company.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 25, 2020.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:-
a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in acterdance with Ind AS notified under the Campanies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter read with
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended. All accounting policies are consistently applied
except as given below:

The company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result
of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2019, but do not have an impact
on the financial statements of the company. The Company has not early adopted sny standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

These financial statements are prepared under the accrual basis and historical cost measurement, except
for certain financial instruments (refer accounting policy on financial instruments), which are measured at
fair values. The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period,
The financial statements are presented in Indian National Currency Rupee (%} which is the functional
currency of the Company, and alt values are rounded to the nearest million, except where otherwise
indicated. All amounts individualiy less than % 0.5 mlilion have been reported as *0*.

Ind AS 116 Leasas:

Ind AS 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees ta recognise most leases on the
balance sheat.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify Jeases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind
AS 116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective method of adeption, with the date of
initial application of 1 April 2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not
reassess whether a contract Is, or contains, a lease at 1 April 2019. The Company applied the standard
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of initial
application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the
commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase opticn
{short-term leases), and lease contracts for which the underlylng asset is of low value {low-value assets).




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either,
- In the principal market for the asset or liabilities or

in the absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset and liabilities.

In estimating tha fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of
the asset or Hability if market participants would take those characteristic into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes n
these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment transaction
that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 Shore-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of Ind AS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
valued such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 ar value in use in Ind AS 36 Impairment of ossets.

All assets and liabilities far which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based an the lowest level input that Is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1} Llevel 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or Liabilities.

2} Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement s directly or indirectly observable.

3) Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

b} Use of Estimates
The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amaunts of assets
and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities, Such estimates and
assumptions are based an management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of
financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to the accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future perlods
affected.

¢} Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence and other
losses, whera considered necessary. Cost includes cost of purchase and other expenses incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and conditian. Raw materials, Stock In Trade, Stores,
Spares and Packing materlals are valued an welighted average costs. Work-in-progress and finished goods
include appropriate proportion of overheads.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventaries less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

d) Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents consists of cash in hand & at bank and all highly liquid financial instruments,
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject ta an insignificant risk of
change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase.

e} Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset Is transferred to
the customer. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the
effects of variable consideration, if any.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at gontract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration Is subsequently resalved.

Trade raceivables {Cantract balances)

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of cansideration that is unconditional {i.e,
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is prabable that the economic benefit will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income Is recorded using
the effective Interest rate {EIR). interest income is accrued on a time basls, by reference to the principal
outstanding and the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amaunt on initial
recognition.

f} Property, plant and equipment

tand is carried at historical cost. Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at actual cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The actual cost capitalised includes material cost, freight,
installation cost, duties and taxes and other incidental expenses incurred during the construction /
installation stage.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administration purpases are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment loss, if any. All the direct expenditure related to implementation
including incidental expenditure incurred during the period of Implementation of a project, till it is
commissioned, Is accounted as Capital work in progress (CWIP) and such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.

All items of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposa! or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of praperty, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised fn the statement of profit and loss.




RESINCVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Depregiation

Depreciable amount for assets Is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
estimated residual value. Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment are charged based on straight
line method on an estimated useful life as prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,

The estimated useful lives and residuai values of the property, plant and equipment are reviewed at the
end of each reparting period, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment acquired / disposed off during the year Is
provided en pro-rata basis with reference to the date of addition / disposal.

g) Intangitle assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment lossas, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on dispesal, ar when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or dispasal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunt of the asset, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset Is derecognisad.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortlzed over thelr estimated useful life on a straight line basis over a period of 5
years except Assets like Goodwill arising out of Scheme of Amalgamation, which Is amortized over 7 years
since in the opinion of the management the benefits will be avallable for that period.

h) Leases

The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period.of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term
ieases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

a. Right-of-use assets
The company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlylng assat Is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasuremant of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depraciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the astimated
useful lives of the assets.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

b. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including In substance fixed payments} less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses
{unless they are incurred to produce Inventories} in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses fts incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabllities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a madification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change In an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an optlon to purchase the underlying asset.

¢. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applles the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of law-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards Incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental Income arising Is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
Its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negatiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrylng amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Cantingent rants are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

i) Foreign Currendes

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the transactions in currencles other than the
entity’s functional currency {INR) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevalling at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the rate prevailing at that date. Non-manetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was
determined. Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a fareign currency are
not retransiated,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

J} Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state Insurance scheme, gratuity fund and
compensated absences.

Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company’s contribution to Provident Fund is considered as defined contributien plans and are
charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are
randered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans:

For definad benefit plans in the form aof gratuity fund, the cost of providing benafits is determined using
the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the return on plan
assets {excluding net interest), Is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit
recognised in other comprehensive income in the period In which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other camprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to in
the statement of profit and loss. Net interest is calculated by appiying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit tiability or asset

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit abligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

1) Service costs comprising current service costs, gains and losses on curtaliments and settlements;
and
2} Netinteraest expense or income

The retirement benefit obligation recagnised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obiigation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any assel resulting from this calculation Is limited to past service cost, plus the present
value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits:

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be pald in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service,
These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period In which the employee renders the related service.

Long-term employee benefits:

Compensated absences which are nat expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period
in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
employees up to the balance sheet date. The Company determines the liability fer such accumulated
teaves using the Projected Unit Credit Method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance
Sheet date.

Share based payment:

Equity settled share based payments to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity settled share
based payments is expensed on a straight line basis over the vesting pericd, based on the Company's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

k} Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred In connection with the
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences arising from forelgn currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost.

Borrewing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assats, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Capitalization of borrowing cost is suspended and charged to statement of Profit and loss during the
extended period when active development of the qualifying asset is interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

I} Earnings per share

A basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/{ioss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares considerad for deriving baslc earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net prafit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemad
to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The
dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually
issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are determined independently for each period presented.

m) Taxatlon

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax autharities, based on estimated tax liability computed after taking credit
for allowances and exemption in accordance with the local tax laws. The Company's current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected ta be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temparary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit aor the
accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be avaflable to ailow alf or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the fiability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting perlod

The measurement of deferred tax labilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax {MAT) credit paid in accordance with the tax laws in
india, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future
income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognised as defecred tax asset in the Balance sheet when
the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the
asset will be realised.

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset Is reviewed at each Balance sheet
date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down t@ the extent there is no longer a
convincing evidence ta the effect that the company will pay narma tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to
jtems that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, as the case
may be,

n) Pravisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Pravisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legai or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it Is probabie that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligatian.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligations. When a provision is measured using the cash flow estimated to settle the
present obligatton, its carrying amount Is the present obfigations of those cash flows (when the effect of
the time value of money is material}.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected 1o be recovered
from a third party, a receivable Is recognised as an asset if itis virtually certain that reimbursement will be
raceived and the amount of the recelvable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are nat recognised in the financial statements when an
inflow/ outflaw of economic benefits/ loss are not probable.

o] Non-derivative Financlal Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial llabiiities (ather than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss}
are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial assets or
financial liabifities, as appropriate, on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributabie to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.
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P

a)

Financial assets at amortisad cost

FInancial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise an specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it s measured at amortised cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial llabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity Instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are measured at the
proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financiat assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial statements if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an Intentjon to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative finandal instruments

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest
rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts/options and interest
rate swaps.

The use of foreign currency forward contracts / options is governed by the Cempany’s policles approved
by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such financial derivatives
consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy. The counter party to the Company’s foreign
currency forward contracts Is generally a bank. The Company does not use derivative financial
instruments for speculative purposes.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately

Profit or loss arising on cancellation ar renewal of a forward exchange contract is recognised as income or
as expense in the period in which such cancellation or renewal occurs.

Impairment

Financial assets [other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each Balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit josses to be measured through a loss allowance. The
Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and/or all trade receivables that do
not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured
at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognitian,
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Non-financlal assets
Property, plant and Equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting periad, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
Impalrment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order {0
determine the extent of the impairment loss {If any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recaverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smalfest group of cash generating unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recaverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

{f the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amaunt.
An impairment lass Is recognised immediately in the statement profit and less.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {ar a cash generating
unit} Is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amaunt does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset {or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

r) Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balarice sheet based on current / non-current
classification based on operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal gperating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting period, or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted fram being exchanged or used ta settle a Hability for at
{east twelve menths after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. Wis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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s) Business Combination

The Company has opted to claim exemption under Ind AS 101, “First Time Adopticn of Indian Accounting
Standards” and decided not to apply Ind AS 103 "Business Combination” retrospectlively for past Business
Combinations. Further the Company for applicability of Scheme of amalgamation post application of Ind
As, the existing practice to amortize goodwill over the useful life has been continued instead to test for
impairment as required by Ind AS 101.

t} Critical accounting judgements and key sources af estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the (nd AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reparted amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are comsidered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Aevisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertalnty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimatlon
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing as material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within next financial year.

I. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
As described in Note 2(f), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment and intangible asset at the end of each reporting period. During the
current financiat year, the management determined that there were no changes ta the useful lives
and residual values of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

il. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Pravisians and Contingent Liabilities are reviewed at each Batance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates.
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RESINOVA CHEMIE LEMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

4 LDANS
{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Partieulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Non-current
{Unsecured, consldered good)
Loans and Advances to Employees 0 2
Total 1] 2
Current
{Unsecured, considered good)
Loans and Advances to Employees 1 3
Total 1 3
Note Refer note 36 for detailed disclosure on the falr values.
5 DTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Rs. In Million}
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019 |
Non-current
[Unsecured, considered good)
Security Depasits 14 9
Total 14 9
Current
{Unsecured, considered gaod)
Security Deposits 1 1
interast Accrued on loans and depasits 1 V]
QOther Recelvable 1 1
Tatal 3 2
Note Refer note 36 for detailed disclasure on the falr values.
6 OTHER ASSETS
{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Non-current
Prepaid Expenses o 3
Capital Advances a 11
Total 8 14
Current
Prepaid Expenses 15 13
Balances with Government authorities 85 8
Advances to Suppliers 22 7
Total 122 28
7  INVENTORIES {at lower of cost and net realisable value)
{Rs. In Miilicn)
As at As at
Pacticulars March 31, 2020 | March 33, 2019
Raw Materals 322 325
Wark-in-Progress 64 71
finished Goods a77 17
Packing Materlals 72 86
Stores & Spares 18 18
Total 953 717




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

B TRADE RECEIVABLES

{Rs. In Milllon)
As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Current
Unsecured, considered good 451 745
Unsecured, credit impaired 18 8
Less : Allowance for expected credit loss {18) {8}
Total 451 745
Note Refer Note 36 for information about credit risk and market risk of Trade receivables.
Break-up for trade receivables: {Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Trade receivables from other than related parties 451 745
Receivables from refated parties 0 =
Total 451 745
Notes :
1 The credit period ranges from 30 days to 180 days.
2 Before accepting any new customer, the Company assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed annually.
3 !n determining the allowances for tredit impaired trade recaivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected cradit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix, The provision matrix takes
Into account histarical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information, The expected credit loss
allowance is basad on the ageing of the recelvables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix.
4 Moavement In Expected Credit Loss Allowance
{Rs. in Million)
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year 8 B
Less : Utilisation out of sarlier year 1 .
Add : Provision during the year 11 -
Balance at the end of the year 18 8
9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{Rs. In Million)
As at Asat
Partleulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Cash on Hand 2 1
Batance With Banks in current accounts 16 282
Total 18 283
10 OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS
{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
In Deposit Accounts 561 1
Total 561 1
11 CURRENT TAX ASSETS
{Rs. In Million)
Asat As at
Pacticutars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Taxes Receivable 27
Tetal 7




RESINQVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

12 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Rs. In Miilion}
As at Asat
P ia
arieulan March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Authorised Share Capital
5,750,000 {as at March 31, 2019 ; 5,750,000} Equity Shares of Rs,10/- each 58 58
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Share Capital
293,895 (as at March 31, 2019 ; 293,895) Equity Shares of Rs. 18/ each fully paid up 3 3
Total 3 3
3} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
The company has only ona class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- each. £ach Share holder Is eliglble for one
vote per share and are entitled to dividend as and when declared. All shares rank eqgually with regard 1o the Company's
residual assets after distribution of all preferential amounts.
b} Reconciliation of number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and 2t the end of the reporting period :
Particulars No. of 5hares As. tn Millien
Balance as at April 1, 2018 293,895 3
Add: Shares lssued - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 293,895 3
Add: Shares Issued . -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 293,895 3
t] Details of share heid by the sharehalder hoiding mare than 5% shares :
Asat Asat
Name of Sharehalders March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Astral Poly Techn'k Limited {Holding Company]
No. off Shares 286,395 286,335
% of Shares Held 97 45 97.45
13 OTHER EQUITY
{Rs. In Millian)
As at As at
Farticulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,048 3,048
Balance at the end of the yaar 3,048 3,048
Retained eamings
Balance at the beginning of the year 329 188
Add: Profit for the Year a2 141
Add:  Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement ef defined benefit abligation 0 0
Balance at the end of the year 371 329
Total 3,419 3,377
Notes
a  Nature and purpose of Reserve

Securities premium

The amount raceived in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium. This reserve is available

for utillsation In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Retained sarmings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Campany has carned ull date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or

ather distributions paid to shargholders.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

14 BORROWINGS

{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
i March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Non-current
Secured - at amortised cost
Term Loans From Banks 44 80
Less: Current maturity of long term Ioans (Note 18) 16 16
8 a4
Unsecurad - at amortised cost
Buyers Credit 206 182
Less: Current maturity of long term buyers credit {Note 18} 206 -
. 192
Total 8 236

Notes:
a)
b)

Refer Note 36 for infarmation abaut liquidity risk.

Amount stated In Current maturity is disclosed under the head of "Other Financlal Llabilities {Current)” {Note No. 18]

c) Term Loans are Secured by way of first charge, in respect of Fixed Assets, both present and future, and second charge on
entire current assets of the Company bath present and future.Rate of Interest for Rupee Term Loan ranges from B to 11%.

1 Kotak Bank Term toan of Rs.44 Million (as at March 31, 2019 : Rs. 60 Million) repayable within 45 Manths {i.e. by December

2022} including initial moratorium period of twelve months from the date of first disbursement in twenty quarterly equat

tnstalments.
d)

Buyers Credit - Rate of Interest for Buyer's Credit ranges from 0 to 1%.

1 H58C Bank Buyers Credit of Rs. 206 Million (as at March 31, 2019: Rs. 192 Million) Repayable by December 2020,

15 PROVISIONS

{Rs. in Milllon}
As at As at
Partculars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Non-current
Provision for Employee Benefits 15 15
Total 15 15
Current
Provision for Employee Benefits 14 12
Total 14 12
16 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {NET})
{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Rarticulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2018
Deferred Tax Liabilittes 159 221
Deferred Tax Assets {109) {160)
Tata! 50 51
Deferred tax flabilities/{assets) in relation to
{Rs. In Milllon)
Particulars As at Recognised In MAT Credit As at
April 1, 2018 | profit and Loss Utllisatian March 31, 2019
Property, plant and equipment 224 {3} - m
Unabsorbed Depreciation {99 99 {0)
Unabsorbed Scientific Research . {17} (17)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables {3) - {3
Compensated absences {10] {4} {13)
MAT credit Entitlement {79} {47} {126)
Total 33 28 - 61




RESINOVA CHEMIE UMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. In Million})
Particulars As at Recognised In MAT Credit As at
April 1, 2019 prafit and Loss Utllisation March 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment 221 (62) - 159
Unabsorbed Depraciation {0) 0 . -
Unabsorbed Scientific Research {17) 17 - -
provisien for doubtful trade receivables {3 {3} . {6)
Compensated ahsences [14) {1 - {15}
MAT credit Entitlernent (126} - 38 {88)
Total 51 {49} 38 50
17 TRADE PAYABLES
{Rs. tn Million}
As at As at
Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31,2018
a Total autstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total . -
b Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smalil enterprises
Operational Buyers Credit 72 75
Dug to others 361 327
Total 433 402

Nate:

a Infarmation as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been Identified an the basis of information available with the Company. This has

been relied upon by the Auditor.

b Refer Nete 36 for Information about credit risk, market risk and liguidity risk of Trade payables.

18 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Rs. In Millan)
As at As at
Earticuisrs March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Current
Current maturities of Long Term Barrowings {Note 14) 222 16
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 0 ¢]
Interest accrued but not due on borrawings 0 1
Payable for capital goods 11 &
QOthers 47 40
Total 280 53
19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{Rs. In Million)
As at As at
Fartculars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2018
Statutory dues 29 n
Advance received from Customers 23 8
Total 52 80
20 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES {NET}
(Rs. In Million)
Particulars — Asat
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Income tax payable {net of advance payment of tax) - 12
Total - 12




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

{Rs. In Mlilion)
Year ended Year ended
rticul
Particulars March 31,2020 | Mareh 31, 2019
Revenue from contract with customers 3,750 4,346
Other operating ravenues 21 24
Total 3,771 4,370

The Company mainly deals into adhesives and sealeants and hence, no disaggregation of revenue is provided.
Other information relating to contract balances, i.e. Trade Receivables, Is stated in nota 8.

22 OTHER INCOME

{Rs. In Millon}
Year ended Year ended
Farticulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Interest Income comprises:
Froem Banks Q 0
From Related Party {Note 35} 1 -
From Others [ -
Profit on Sale of Current Investments {Net) 6 2
Foreign exchange gains (Nat) 1 17
Miscellaneous income 0 25
Total 14 44
23 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
(Rs. In Milllon)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2013
Inventories at the beginning of the year 328 319
Add: Purchases 1999 2,310
[Less: Inventories at the end of the year 322 325
Cost of Material Consumed 2,002 1,304
Inventarles at the beginning of the year 86 87
Add: Purchases 427 430
Less:  Inventories at the end of the year 72 86
Cost of Packing Materlal Consumed 241 491
Total 2,443 2,795
24  PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
{Rs. In Millian)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Other 5 3
Total 5 3




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

25 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS

{Rs. In Mitlion)
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
nventories At the end of the year
Finished Goods 477 217
Work-in-progress 64 71
Stock In Trade - -
541 288
inventories At the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 217 228
Work-in-progress 71 52
Stock tn Trade - 13
288 293
Net {Increase} / Decrease; {253} 5
26 EMPLDYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
{Rs. In Milllca)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2013
Salaries and wages 385 301
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Note 33) 28 1
Staff wetfare Expenses 12 11
Total 425 334
27 FINANCE COSTS
{Rs- In Million)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2026 | March 31, 2019
interest Expenses on
Waorking capital and term loans 7 8
Others 3 1
Other Barrowing Casts 2 P
Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment 1o borrowing casts 16 -
Total 28 11
18 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
{Rs. tn Million)
particulars Year ended Year ended
March 32,2020 | March 31,2013
Depreciation of propesty, plant and equipment (Note 3) 90 7
amartisation on Intangible assets (Note 3} 370 370
Amartisation of Right of use asset (ROU) {Note 3) 17 -
Jatal 477 447




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

29 OTHER EXPENSES

{Rs. In Milion)
Particutars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Consumption of Stores and Sparas 17 17
Power and Fuel 63 57
Rent {Nate 37) 20 21
Repairs Expenses 17 13
Insurance Expenses 7 4
Rates and Taxes 0 0
Royalty Expense 24 30
Communication Expenses 15 15
Travelling Expenses 94 76
Factory and Other Expenses 7 6
Ptinting and Stationary Expenses 2 1
Freight and Forwarding 128 114
Commission 0 0
Sales Promotions 175 218
Directors Sitting Fees {Note 35) 0 1]
Expenditure an Corporate Social Responsibility (Note 34 & 35) 4 2
Security Service Charges 10 6
Legal and Professionat 12 10
Payments to Auditors ** 1 1
Bad Debts Written Off - 0

Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables 11 .
Loss on Sate of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 1 1
Other Expenses 8 7
Total 520 602
PAYMENT TO AUDITORS {(EXCLUDING G5T) {Rs. In Million)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Ta Statutory Auditors **
For statutory audit 1 1
Total 1 1




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

30 TAX EXPENSES

{Rs. In Mllion)
Year ended Year ended
Pacticutars March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
Current tax
In respect of the current year
Current Tax 47 48
MAT Credit Entitlement . (47
In respect of earller years ] 1
47 1
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (49} 75
{45} 75

Reconciiation of the Income tax expenses to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

profit before income taxes is summarised below

{Rs. In Midlian}
Year ended Year ended
Farticulars March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019
Profit before tax 40 217
ncome tax expense € 34.944% (FY 2018-19 : 34.544%) 14 76
Differences dueto :
rlmpact of Change |n Statutory Tax Rate on Deferred Tax {14) -
Effect of allowances {2 {1)
Total [2) 75
Adjustments in respact of current income tax of previous year 1] 1
Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss {2} 76

The Company's weighted average tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 were 30.00%

and 35 16%, respectively




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

31. EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit for the Year attributable to the owners of the 42 141
Company (Rs. In Millian}
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 293,895 293,895
Nominal Value per sharas (Rs.) 10 10
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share {In Rs.} 142.91 479.34
32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS NOT PROVIDED EOR:
{Rs. in Million)
5. | Particulars As at As at
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Contingent Liabilities
1 | Disputed Central Excise/Sales Tax/PF and other 7 7
demands”
Commitments
1 | Capital Contracts remaining ta be executed {Net of 20 43
Advances)
2 | Letters of Credits for Purchases 85 82
3 | Commitment on uncalled MHability of shares ) -
subscription®*

* Future cash outflows in respect of the above matters are determined only on receipt of judgments /
decisions pending at various forums / authoritles.

** The Company is subscriber to Memorandum of Association of newly incorporated associate company,

namely, ‘Astral Foundation’.

33. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
The disclosures required under Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” are given below:
Defined Contribution Plan:

Amount towards Defined Contribution Plan have been recognized under "Contribution to Provident
and Other funds” In Note No. 26, Rs. 18 Million {Previous Year: Rs.13 Million).

Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company has defined benefit plans for gratuity to eligible employees, contributions for which are
made to insurance service providers who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines. The details of these
defined benefit plans recognised in the financial statements are as under:

General Description of the Plan:

The Company operates a defined benefit plan {the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees, which
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination
of employment, of an amount based an the respective employees salary and the tenure of
employment.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

a) Movement In present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows :

{Rs. In Million}
Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Obligations at the beginning of the year 25 22
Current service cost 5 4
Interest cost 2 2
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions - 0
Actuarial {gain) / loss - due to change in financial {0) 0
assumptions

Actuarial {gain) / loss — due to change in demographic (1) {0)
assumptions

Actuarial {gain) / loss- due to experience adjustments 1 )]
Benefits paid (3) (2)
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 29 26

b) Movement in the fair value of plan assets are as follows :
{Rs. In Million)
Gratulty
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Plan assets at the beginning of the year, at fair value 3 5
Intarest Income 0 0
Return on plant assets excluding interest incorne (0) {0
Caontributions from the employer 5 0
Benefits paid (3) {2)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5 3

¢] The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entities obligation in respect of defined

benefit plan is as foliows :

{Rs. In Million}

Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of benefit abligation at the end of the year 29 25
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 5 3
Net liability arising fram defined benefit obligation 24 22




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

d) Amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of the definad benefits plans are as

e)

f)

g)

follows :
{fs. In Million)
Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current service cost S 4
Net Interest expense 2 1
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the 7 5
Statement of Profit and Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Actuarial {gains) / losses on obtigation for the period {0} (D)
Return on plant assets, excluding interest income 0 ¢
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other 0 0
Comprehensive Income
Total 7 5

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the Employee
benefits expense line item in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The remeasurement of the net defined
benefit liability/ asset is included in Other Comprehensive Income.

Investment details of plan assets:

To fund the obligations under the gratuity plan, Cantributions are made to Life Insurance Service
providers, who invests the funds as per IRDA guidelines.

The defined benefit obligations shall mature after year ended March 31, 2020 as follows:

{Rs. In Milllan
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

As at March 31
2020 2
2021 2 2
2022 1 1
2023 1 1
2024 2 2
2025 1 61
Thereafter 72

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount
rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. In Million)

Gratuity
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2018
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of Discounting (3} {2}
Delta effect of -1% change In the rate of Discounting 4 3
Delta effect of +13% change in the rate of salary Increase 4 3
Delta effect of -1% change In the rate of salary increase {3} (2)
Delta effect of +1% change in the rate of employee turnover 0 0
Delta effect of -1% change in the rate of employee turnover (0) {0}

The sensitivity analysis presented abave may not be representative of the actual change in the defined
penehit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumgtions would occur in isolation of one
another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
abligation has been calkculated using “Projected Unit Credit” methed at the end of the reporting period
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in
Balance Sheet.

There were na change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from
priar years.

The Company expects to make a contribution of Rs. 24 Million {as at March 31, 2019: Rs. 22 Million) to
the defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

h) The principal assumptions used for the purpase of actuarial valuation were as follows :

Gratuity
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount Rate 6.89% 7.76%
Expected return on plan assets 6.85% 7.76%
Annual Increase in Salary Costs ) 6.00% 7.00%
Rate of Employee turnover Fa:.:rs ser;l::lzw For service 4 years
years an and helow 7.00%
10.00% p.a. For
‘ p.a. For service 5
service 5 years
nd above 2.00% years and above
@ ove s 4.00% p.a.
p.a.
Martality Tables Indian Assured tives Mortality
{2006-08)

Future Salary Increases are based on long term average salary rise expected taking into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the
employee market. Future Separation & mortality rates are obtained from relevant data of Life
Insurance Corporation of Indla.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY {CSR) EXPENDITURE;

The gross amount required to be spent by the Company on Corporate Soclal Responsibility {CSR)
activities during the year as per the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 amounts to Rs. 4
Million (Previous year : Rs. 2 Million). The revenue expenditure charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss in respect of Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR) actlvities undertaken during the year is Rs. 4
Million (Previous year : Rs, 2 Million) and has been paid.

35. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

1. Name of the related parties and their relationships :

Sr. | Description of Relationship Name of Related Parties
No.
2. | Holding/Parent Company Astral Poly Technik Limited
b. | Entities with Joint control /Fellow Subsidiaries Astral 8iochem Private Umited

Seal IT Services Limited - UK

Seal IT Services Limited — USA

¢. | Enterprises over which Key Managerial Persannel | Kairav Chemicals Limited

are able to exercise significant influence Kairamya lourneys LLP

Parikh Resins Umited

Saumya Polymers LLP

Astral Charitable Trust

Astral Foundation

d. | Key Managerial Personnel / Directors Mr. Sandeep Engineer {Managing Director)
Mr. Vijay Parikh (Non-Executive Director
from January 1, 2019}

Mr. Rajesh Dwived! {(Whole Time Director)

Mr. Xairav Engineer {Director)

Mr. Saumya Engineer (Director)

Mrs. Monica Kanuga (Directar)
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RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

36 Financlal Instruments

1 Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as golng concern while
maximising the return to stakeho!ders through optimisation of dabt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt {borrowings as detatled in notes 14 and 18 off set by cash and
bank balances) and total equity of the Company.

The company's risk management committee reviews the risk capital structure of the company on semi annual basls. As
part of this review the company considers the cost of capital and the risk assoclated with each class of capital.

Gearing ratlo
{Rs. In Million)
As at

Particulars March 31, 2020] March 31, 2019
Debt (note i} 250 252
Less : Cash and cash equivalants 13 283
Net debt 232 -
Equity share capital 3 3
Other Equity 3,419 3,377
Total equity 3,422 3,380
Net debt to equity ratio 5.78% -

i Debt is defined as long-tarm borrowings, short-term borrowings and current maturities of long term borrowings as
described in notes 14 and 18.

2 Category-wise classification of finandal instruments
{Rs. in Miilion)

As at

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
a Cash and cash equivafents and other bank balances (Note 9 & 10) 579 284
b Financial assets {Note 4,5 & B) 469 761

Total 1,048 1,045

Financial liabilities
|Measured at amortised cost
a Borrowings {(Note 14 and 1B} 250 252
b Financlal liabilities {Note 17,18 & 37) 512 449
Total 762 701

In respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.

3 Finmanclal eisk management objectives

The Company’s financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The
Cornpany’s financial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, Ipans,

The Company's business activities are exposed to a varlety of flnancial risks, namely market risk {including currency risk
and Interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s senlor management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk
management framework who are respansibie for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, periodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the
changes in the policy accordingly. The key risks and mitigating act'ans are also placed before the Audit Committee of the
Company. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the
resuits of which are reported to the audit committee.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LYMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

A MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK
The Company's size and operatlons result in it being exposed to the following market risks that arise from its use of
financial instruments;
- currency risk;
- interest rate risk

i Currency risk

The Company's activities expose It primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. The
Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its expasure to foreign currancy risk.

The carrylng amounts of the Company's forelgn currency dominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as fallows:

{in Millions)
As at
Partleul
ariedars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Liahilities {Foreign currencyl
n US Dollars (U50} 1 2
in Euro (EUR) 2 2
{Rs. in MHlions)
As at
Particul
i March 31, 2020] March 31, 2019
Liabifitles {INR)
In US Dollars (USD) 109 110
in Euro {EUR) 2056 193
Derivative instruments:

The Company usas foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risks assoclated with foreign currency fluctuations
refating to certaln firm commitments and forecasted transactions. The use of foreign turrency forward contracts Is
governed by the Company’s strategy approved by the Board of Directors, which provide principles on the use of such
forward contracts consistent with the Company’s Risk Management Poticy. The Company does not use forward contracts
for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company Is mainly exposed to the currency : USD and Eura.

The following table detalls, Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the rupee ‘against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reparting foreign currency risk Internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change In foreign exchange rates. This Is
mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding nat hedged on receivables and payables in.the.Cormnpany at the end of
the reparting period. The sensitivity analysis includes oniy outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive numbar below
indicates an increase in the profit and equity where the rupee strengthens 5% against the relevant curcency. Fora s%
weakening of the rupee against the refevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the proflt and equity,
and the balances below would be negative.

{Rs. in Millions)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Inctease in exchange rate by 5% {16} {13)
Decrease In exchange rate by 5% 16 15




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

The Company, in accordance with its risk management palicies and procedures, enters into foreign currency forward
contracts to manage its exposure in foreign exchange rate variations. The counter party is generally a bank. These
contracts are for a pertod between one day and five years. The above sensitivity does not include the impact of foreign
currency forward contracts and option contracts which largely mitigate the risk.

it

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the future cash flow with respect to Interest payments on borrowing will fluctuate
because of change In market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes In market interest rates
relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligation with floating interest rates.

Intarest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity ta a reasanably possible change in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected
through the impact on fleating rate borrowings, as follows:

{Rs. in Miltion)
Increase/ Effect on profit
Particulars decrease In before tax
basis points
As at March 31, 2020 100 bps 2
As at March 31, 2019 100 bps 3

The assumed movement in basis points for the Interest rate sensitlvity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility than in prior years.

MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligation resultlng in financial foss to
the Company. The Company uses its own trading records to evaluate the credit worthiness of tts customers, The
Company’s exposure are continuously manitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded, are spread
amongst approved counter parties {refer note 8 - Trade receivable).
MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations assoctated with its financial liabilities.
The Company’s approach to managing liquldity is ta ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rasts with the Board of Directors, which has established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company’s shart-term, medium-term
and lang-term funding and liquidity managemeant requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing faciities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial lHabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrylng value as at the Balance Sheet date.
{Rs. in Million})
Particulars Camrying | Lessthanl 15 years More than 5 Total
amount year years
As at March 31, 2020
[Non-derivative finandial liabilities
Borrow!ngs 250 222 28 - 250
Lease Liabilitles {Note 37} 21 13 8 - 21
Financial LiabilTties 431 431 - - 491
Total 762 726 36 - 762
As at March 31, 2019
Non-derivative finandal liabilities
Borrowings 252 16 236 - 252
Financlal Liabilities 449 449 - P 449
Total 701 465 235 A BN
alr C
=AY 2
=
) Y
N ‘v




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

37. LEASE

Company as a lessee

The Company adopted ind AS 116 using the madified retrospective method of adoptian, with the date of
initial application of April 1, 2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient to not
reassess whether 3 contract is, or contains, a lease at April 1, 2015. The Company applied the standard
only to contracts that were previously Identified as leases applying Ind AS 17 at the date of inltial
application. The Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the
commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase optian
{short-term leasas), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value {low-value assets).

{Rs. in Million)

Right of Use Assets
Particulars (ROU) Lease Liabilities

Tangible Assets
As on April 1, 2019 16 16
Add: Reclassified from leasehoid land 53 -
Add : Additions 20 20
Less : Depreciation/amaortisation of expenses 17 -
Add : Interest Expenses S 2
Less : Payments - 17
As on March 31, 2020 72 21
Current S 13
Non-current - 8

There is no material impact on other comprehensive income or the basic and diluted earnings per share.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

38. Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (DSIR), Ministry of Science and Technology,
Government of India, has accorded approval for In-house research and development centre of the
company situated at First Floor, Block no. 2221/1, Ms, Shah Alloys , Santej Nasmed Road , Gandhinagar
, which has been put to usa in April 2018. Following is the break up of revenue and capital expenditure
incurred on approved R&D unit as certified by the management for the year ending as on March 31,
2020. Expenses disclosed under the respective notes to accounts are inclusive of expenditure for
research and development.

{Rs. In Million}
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Revenue Expenditure
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 13 7
Other Expense 2 1
Total {A) 15 8
8 Capital Expenditure
Office Building g 19
Plant & Machinery 2 7
Computer 0 1
Furniture & Fixtures - 4
Total (B) 2 31
Total Expenditure on research &
devefopment {A+B) 17 39

39. SEGMENT REPORTING:

The company has presented segment information in the Consolidated Financlal Statement of the Holding
Company and accordingly, in terms of paragraph 4 of ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, no disclosure
related to segments are presented in this financial statement.

40, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO THE GLOBAL HEALTH PANDEMIC COVID-19

In view of the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic, the management has made a detailed assessment of
its liquidity position for the next one year and recoverability of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Investments, Trade Receivables and Inventories as at the balance sheet date. In assessing the
recoverability, the Company has considered internal and external information upto the date of approval
of these Ind AS financial statements and has concluded that there are no matearial impact on the
operatiens and the financial position of the Company. However, the impact of the global health
pandemnic may be different from that estimated at the date of 2pproval of these financial statements and
the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.




RESINOVA CHEMIE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

41, The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm with
the current year's classification.

As per report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Resinova Chemie Limited
ICA) Firm Registration No.: 3249825/80000%—--\ 4295GJ2009PLC058120
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Per Anil Jobanputra
Partner
Membership No.: 11075

{Sandeep P. Engineer)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00067112

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 25, 2020

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: May 25, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31% March 2020, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 2 summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as Ind
AS Financial Statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its
loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of india together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibiliies of Management and Those Charged with Govemnance for the Ind AS Financlal
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
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and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maiters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. -

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial staterments
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, as in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the said
order is not applicable to the company.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

(a) We have sought and cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 312 March,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

703-709, Raheju Chambarn, Fras Press Journe Road, Narmaun Puint, MUMBAI 400021
Dial: 8122 6632444R /37 FAX - 41.22.22862133 Emsil - mumba agkran com

P07, To stoy House, Tolstoy Mary, Junpath. NEW DELH! - 110 0N
Branchag. Dal:i¥91-1143717773-74; Email  nicagksen com

‘Surya Bhavar', Station Rnnd, PETLAD - 388 450 Wial 91-2G97-224108




(f)

(@)

Erbcenimend ORbrrcrentants

Madtiubean' N-. Madalpur Underbridne, Flishrdge, Ahmedsbec - 360 QUG,
Dlal: 91 - 79 - 30012003, Y9241 /405558 Fax 1 §1 75 26563929 Bma : infoGgkeco.com

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its notification bearing no. G.S.R. 583(6) dated
13th June 2017, amended the provision of section 143(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.
In accordance with the same reporting requirement related to adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting is not applicable to
the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR G. K. CHOKS! & CO.
[Firm Registration No. 101895Wj
Chartered Accountan(s

VARTIK
ROHITBHAI

CHOKSI +05'30°
VARTIK R. CHOKSI
Pariner
Mem. No. 116743
UDIN: 20116743AAAABVEBSS

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : 11" May, 2020

Branchea :
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A7, To stoy House, 1otstoy Mery, Junpath. NEW DELHI - 110 001
Dial 1 91-11-43717773-74, Emall ninegkcen com

‘Suryu Bliavan', Station Annd, PETLAD - 388 450 Cial Y1-2G97-221108

Digitally signed by VARTIK
ROHITBHAI CHOKS|
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ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

{% In lacs)
As at As at
Particulars NOeS | March31,2020 | March 31, 2018
ASSETS
Non-current assets
a Financial Assets
i. Loans 3 - 0.50
b Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 4 5.53 6.92
Total non-current assets 5.53 7.42
Current Assets
a Financial Assets
i, Cash and Cash Equivalents S 295 2.77
b Current tax Assets (Net) 6 - 6.21
¢ Other Current Assets 7 0.80 0.77
Total Current Assets 3.75 9.75
Total Assets 9.28 17.17
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a Equity Share Capital 8 5.00 5.00
b Other Equity 9 {103.42) {101.74)
Total Equity {98.42) (96.74)
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
a Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings 10 106.60 106.60
ii.Trade Payables 11 1.10 1.10
iii.Other Financial Liabilities 12 - 6.21
Total Current Liabilities 107.70 113.91
Total Liabilities 107.70 113.91
Total Equity & Liabilties 9.28 17.17

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For G. K. Chokst & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0101895W
VARTIK
ROHITBHAI
CHOKSI

CA Vartik R. Choksi
Partner
Membership No.: 116743

Digitally signed by VARTIK
ROHITBHA) CHOKSI

Date: 20200501 19:32:29
+05 30

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Astral Biochem Private Limited
CIN:U01407GJ2008PTCO54506

{Sandeep P. Engineer)
Chairman
DIN : 00067112

Place ; Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{X In lacs)
Particulars Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Income
Other Incame 13 0.44 -
Total Income 0.44 -
Expenses
Other Expenses 14 0.73 0.23
Total Expenses 0.73 0.23
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax {0.29} {0.23)
Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Defererd Tax 1.39 &
1.39 &
Profit/{Loss} For the Year {1.68) {0.23)
Other comprehensive income S -
Total comprehensive income for the year {1.68) {0.23)
Earnings Per Share: Face Value of ® 10/- each 15
Basic {3.36) {0.46)
Diluted {3.38) {0.46)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For G. K. Choksi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration No.: 0101895wW

VARTIK Digitally signed by VARTIK
ROHITBHAI CHOKSI

ROHITBHAI Date: 20200651 19:33:20

CHOKSI +08°30°

CA Vartik R. Choksi

Partner

Membership No.: 116743
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Astral Biochem Private Limited
CIN:U01407GJ2008PTCO54506

Sandeep =
Pravinbha
Engneer T
{Sandeep P. Engineer)
Chairman
DIN : 00067112
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020
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ASTRAL BIO CHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020

Equity share capital {Note 8) {X in lacs)
Particulars Amount

Balance at April 1, 2018 5.00

Add: movement during the year &

Balance at March 31, 2019 5.00

Add: movement during the year 0
|Balance at March 31, 2020 5.00

Other Equity (Note 3) {X in lacs)

Particulars o Equngetained Total
Capital Reserve Other Equity
earnings

Balance at April 1, 2018 43.39 {144.80) (101.51)
Addition/Deletion during the year - - -
IProfit for the year = (0.23) {0.23)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - {0.23) {0.23)

Balance at March 31, 2019 43.39 (145.13) {101.74)
Profit for the year - {1.68) (1.68)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax - - .
Total comprehensive income for the year - {1.68) (1.68)

Balance at March 31, 2020 43.39 {146.81) (103.42))

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For G. K. Choks! & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0101895W

VARTIK Digitally signed by VARTIK
ROHITBHAI CHOKS!

ROHITBHAL Date: 20200511 $9:33:43

CHOKSI +0530°

CA Vartik R. Choksi

Partner

Membership No.: 116743

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Astral Biochem Private Limited
CIN:U01407G)2008PTCOS4506

fandeen g

Prayibha
Fnginest

(Sandeep P. Engineer)
Chairman
DIN : 00067112

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020

(% In Lacs)
Sr Particulars Year ended Year ended
No. March 31,2020 | March 31,2019
A. |Cash flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (0.29) (0.23)
Changes in Working Capital:
Increase/{Decrease} in Trade Payables, financial liabilities other liabilities R {1.87)
and provisions
{Increase)/Decrease in Trade receivables, financial assets and other assets (.46 Q.45
Cash generated from operations 0.46 {1.42}
Income taxes paid 6.21 -
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities { A } 6.38 {1.65)
B. |Cash flow from Investing Activities
Paid towards excess amount received (6.21) -
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities (B ) {6.21) -
€. |Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities { C ) - -
NET INCREASE/{DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT { A+B+C) 0.18 {1.65)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (Note 5) 2.77 4,42
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Note 5) 2.95 2.77

Note The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared as per ‘Indirect Method' as set aut in Ind AS 7 on Statement

of Cash Flow.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities {% In Lacs}
Particulars Non-current Current Total
borrowings borrowings
Balance as at March 31,2019 - 106.60 106.60
Cash flows - - -
Balance as at March 31,2020 - 106.60 106.60

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For G. K. Choksi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0101895W

VARTIK Sﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬁ’ﬂ e i Eors
ROH'TBHAI CHOKf' Ergineer T

CHOKSI 123506 40530

CA Vartik R. Choksi (Sandeep P. Engineer}
Partner Chairman

Membership No.: 116743
Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020

DIN : 00067112

Place : Ahmedabad
Date : May 11, 2020

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Astral Biochem Private Limited
CIN:UQ1407GJ2008PTC054506




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW:

The Company is a private limited Company incorporated in India and is wholly owned subsidiary of
Astral Poly Technik Limited, which is a listed Company.

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on May 11, 2020.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended.

b} Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis using historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technigue.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or

transfer the liability takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liabilities or

- In the absence of a principal market in the most advantageous market for the asset and
liabilities.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the

characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristic into

account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement

and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for

share based payment transaction that are within the scope of Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment,

leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 Leases, and measurements that have

some similarities to fair value but are not fair valued such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or

value in use in Ind AS 36 /mpairment of assets.

All assets and liahilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

1) Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
Liabilities.

2} Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

3) Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¢} Use of Estimates

The presentation of the financial statements are in conformity with the Ind AS which requires the
management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates
and assumptions are based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on
the date of financial statements. The actual outcome may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to the
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

d) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having
original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.

e) Earnings per share

A basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/{loss) for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been
issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity
shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued
at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares).
Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

f} Taxation

Tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after
taking credit for allowances and exemption in accordance with the local tax laws. The Company’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recaver or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit paid in accordance with the tax
laws in india, which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off
against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT credit is recognized as deferred tax asset in the
Balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the future economic
benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income.

g) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligations. When a provision is measured using the cash flow
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present obligations of those
cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements when an
inflow/ outflow of economic benefits/ loss are probable.

h) Non-derivative Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liahilities. Equity instruments recognised by the Company are measured at
the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in financial
statements if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seftle the liabilities
simultaneously.

i} Operating Cycle

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification based on operating cycle.

An asset is treated as current when itis:
1. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
2. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
1. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
2. itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
3. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reparting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.



ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

3 LOANS
{% In lacs)
As at As at
Particul
articutars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Non Current
Secured and Considered Good
Security Deposits - 0.50
Total - 0.50
a4 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS {NET)
{® In laes)
As at As at
Particul
kil March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Deferred Tax Assets
Opening Brought Forward Loss 6.92 6.92
Charged to Profit and loss Account {1.39) -
Taotal 5.53 6.92
5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{% In lacs)
As at As at
Particul
artiewiars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash on hand 0.13 0.13
Balances with banks 2.82 2.64
Total 2.95 .77
[ CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
{¥ In lacs)
As at As at
Particul
articutars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
TDS receivable - 6.21
Total - 6.21
7 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
(% In lacs)
Particulars As at e
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balance with Government Authorities (.80 0.77
Total 0.80 0.77




8 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(% In lacs)
As at As at
particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares (P.Y. : 50,000 Equity Shares) of % 10/- 5.00 5.00
Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Share Capital
Equity Share Capital
50,000 Equity Shares {P.Y. ; 50,000 Equity Shares) of % 10/- each
fully paid up 5.00 5.00
Total 5.00 5.00

a} The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10/- each. Each Share holder is

eligible for one vote per share.

b) Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding :

Particulars fsat fis at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013
As at beginning of the year/periad 50,000 50,000
Add: issued During the year/period - =
As at end of the year/period 50,000 50,000

¢} The details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares as at March 31, 2020 and as at March 31, 2019

is set out below.

As at As at
rame of Shareholders March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Astral Poly Technik Limited
No. of Shares 50,000 50,000
- % of Shares Held 100% 100%
Amount {in lacs) 5.00 5.00

d} 50,000 {as at March 31, 2019 : 50,000) equity shares of % 10/- fully paid up are held by Parent Company -

Astral Poly Technik Limited jointly with nominees.

g OTHER EQUITY

{% In lacs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 43.39 43.39
Add: During the Year - -
Balance at the end of the year 43.39 43.39
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year {145.13) {144.90}
Add: Profit/{Loss) for the Year {1.68) {0.23)
Balance at the end of the year {146.81) {145.13}
Total {103.42) {101.74)




10 BORROWINGS

(X In lacs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current
LUnsecured
Loans and Advances from Related Parties* (Note 16)
Astral Poly Technik Limited - The Holding Company 106.60 106.60
Total 106.60 106.60
*  The loan is repayable on demand.
11 TRADE PAYABLES
{X In lacs)
As at As at
Paticulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Qther than Acceptances *
Trade Payables for Service Received 1.10 1.10
Total 1.10 1.10

* There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as on March 31, 2020 (as on March 31, 2019 ; Rs. Nil). This
information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Smal and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditor.

12  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

{®in lacs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

Current
Others (Payable towards Excess Amount Received)
Total

6.21

6.21




13 OTHER INCOME

{% In lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest Income from others (.44
Total 0.44 -
14  OTHER EXPENSES
{X In lacs)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Payment to Auditors* 0.20 0.20
Legal Expenses 0.03 0.03
Deposits Written Off 0.50 .
Total 0.73 0.23
* Payment to Auditors: {X In lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
For Statutory Audit 0.20 0.20
For QOther Services - -
0.20 0.20




ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15, EARNINGS PER SHARE:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Profit/ (Loss} for the year attributable to the (1.68) {0.23)
owners of the Company (X In lacs)
Weighted average number of equity shares 50,000 50,000
outstanding
Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (In Rs.) (Face {3.36) {0.46)
Value of X 10/- each)

16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

1. Name of Parties and relationships

Sr. Description of Relationship
No.

Names of Related Parties

a. | Holding Company/Parent Company

Astral Poly Technik Limited

b. | Entities with joint control /Fellow
Subsidiaries

Resinova Chemie Limited
Seal It Services Ltd - UK
Seat It Services Ltd — USA
Astral Foundation

c. | Key Management Personnel

Mr. Sandeep P. Engineer
Mr. Kairav S. Engineer
Mr. Saumya S. Engineer

d. | Relatives  of
Personnel

Key

Management

Mrs. Jagruti 5. Engineer
Mrs. Hansa Engineer

2. Details of related party transactions during the year:

{X In Lacs)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1. | Reimbursement of Expense
Astral Poly Technik Limited | 0.02 | 0.02
2. | Paid for Reimbursement of Expense
Astral Poly Technik Limited | 0.02 | 0.02
3. | Paid towards excess amount received
Resinova Chemie Limited | 6.21 | -
3. Details of related party transactions outstanding balances:
{%X In Lacs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1. | Unsecured Loans
Astral Poly Technik Limited 106.60 | 106.60
2. | Payables
Resinova Chemie Limited - | 6.21




17 Financial instruments

1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt {borrowings as detailed in note 10 off set by cash and bank
balances) and total equity of the Company.

The company's risk management committee reviews the risk capital structure of the company on semi annual basis. As part
of this raview the company considers the cost of capital and the risk associated with each class of capital.
Gearing ratio

{% In lacs)
As at
Farticulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019

Debt {note i) 106.60 106.60
Less : Cash and cash equivalents 2,95 2.77
Net debt 103.65 103.83
Equity share capital 5.00 5.00
Other Equity {103.42) (101.74)
Total equity {98.42) {96.74)
Net debt to equity ratio (1.05) {1.07}

Debt is defined as short-term borrowings, as described in nates 10. Total debt is due to the holding company i.e. Astral Poly
technik Limited.

Category-wise classification of financial instruments

{® In lacs)
As at
Particulars March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2019
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
a  Cash and cash equivalents {Note 5) 2.95 2,77
b  Financial assets {Note 3) - 0.50
Total 2.95 3.27
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
a Borrowings (Note 10} 106.60 106.60
b Financial liabilities {Note 11 and 12) 1.10 7.31
Total 107.70 11381

in respect of financial instruments, measured at amortised cost, the fair value approximates the amortised cost.

Financtal risk management objectives

The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other flnancial liabilities. The
Company’s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalents, and other financial assets,

The Company’s business activities are exposed to kiquidity risk.

MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meating its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractually agreed
undiscounted cash flows along with its carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date.

(% In lacs}
Particulars Carrying amount | Less than 1 year 1-5 years Total
As at March 31, 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 106.60 106.60 - 106.60
Financial Liabilities 1.10 1.10 - 1.10
Total 107.70 107.70 . 107.70
As at March 31, 2019
|Non-derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 106.60 106.50 - 106.60
Financial Liabilities 7.31 7.31 - 7.31
Total 113.91 113.91 - 113.91




18.

19.

20.

ASTRAL BIOCHEM PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The outbreak of Coronavirus {COVID - 19} pandemic globally and in India is causing significant
disturbance and slowdown of economic activity. The Company has evaluated impact of this
pandemic on its business operations and based on its review and current indicators of future
economic conditions, there is no significant impact on its financial results.

Company incurred net loss of X 1.68 Lacs during the year ended, as of balance sheet date, the
company’s current liabilities have exceeded the total assets of the company by X 98.42 Lacs. The
Management will infuse additional capital and / or make necessary financing arrangement as and
when required, to meet the long term / short term capital requirement of the company, further the
management of the company is in process of commencement of new business activities in the
company, having considered this, the Company has prepared its financial statement for current
financial year on “Going Concern Assumption”.

The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm
with the current year's classification.

As Per our report of even date

For G. K. Choksi & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Astral Biochem Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 0101895W CIN:U01407GJ2008PTCO54506
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CA Vartik R. Choksi (Sandeep P. Engineer}

Partner Chairman
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Seal It Services Limited

Strategic report
Year ended 31 March 2020

Principal activity and review of the business
The principal activity of the Group during the period was the manufaclure and supply of building
products and building chemicals.

The results of the Group for the year, as set cut on pages 9 and 10, show a profit before taxation of
£1,180,238 (2019: £856,694). The equity attributable to owners of the parent company totalled
£4,290,914 (2019: £3,537,398).

Due to the effects of Covid-19 it is unlikely that the Group will show turnover growth in the year ahead
but will maximise margin on the slightly reduced turnover to maintain profitability. There remains
significant demand for the groups preducts and with improved productivity brought about by significant
investment in Plant and Machinery and with the introduction of new Products to the range this demand
will service the turnover at a reduced cost.

Cost management remains a key focus of the directors, along with stringent cash management and
the management of credit risk.

Key performance indicators
The directars prepare and monitor key performance indicators on a monthly basis. The key metrics
that are produced include:

2020 2019
Turnover £22,814,719 £21,582,410
Trade Receivable days 69 65

The period under review has seen improvements across most areas of the business, and the focus of
the board remains on setting challenging targets to measure performance.

Risk management

The board constantly menitors and reacts o the risks considered to be important to the future of the
business. The Group purchases raw malerials in foreign currency with any fluctuations potentially
adversely affecting the margins of the business if not managed properly. To mitigate this risk, the
Group, from time to time, enter into forward contracts for the purchase of foreign currency to match
projected fuiure liabilities. This has managed to protect margins in the year under review. The
relationship of sterling to the foreign currencies where the Group has exposure, is monitored daily.

Health and safety is paramount to the business especially in a manufaciuring environment. As part of
the preparations for ISO45001 the directors have overseen a complete review of the health and safety
within the group including the introduction of a health and safety committee with paricipation from all
levels of the organisation along with a review and update of all risk assessments, As a consequence
of these preparations the group were successfully Audited and achieved the prestigious 15045001
{Health and Safety) accreditation in April 2021," The UK Operations of the Group already holds
IS09001 (Customer Service and Quality Control) and 1SO 14001 (Environmental) and are audited
twice a Year by the Awarding Body. There are no outstanding Non- conformances or observations.
The UK operation is proud to now hold the three major standards for the Industry.

The Group monitor the supply chain and the risk that this could pose to the future of the business. The
directors are confident that there is no one single supply pariner that could materially affect the resulls
of the business going forward, and are moving to a model to reduce the reliance on outside suppliers
by making the operation of the Group more vertical,
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Seal It Services Limited

Strategic report (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020

The economic environment in which the Group operale is uncertain due to the effects of Covid-19 and
the future impact of Brexit. However the Direclors have considered and proactively implemented
models, risk assessments and plans fo successfully steer the Group through these events and
challenges that may occur and minimise any adverse impacts.

Obligations under GDPR and the increasing pace and complexity of cyber security risks are
addressed by in house experienced information technolegy specialists who are constanily monitoring
and reviewing the network security and firewalls to ensure that no unauthorised access is permitied.
The Group has a robust, live and fully tested business continuity plan to deal with disaster recovery.

Development and performance of the business

The directors are satisfied with the performance of the business in the period under review. The year
has been one of strong revenue growth, and the directors have invested heavily both in fixed assets
and personnel, to ensure that the business is well structured to deal with the continuing growth.

Principal risk and uncertainties
In common with alf companies operating in the United Kingdom, the impact of the effects of Covid -19

is a principal risk to the group.

Economic risk
The risk of increased interest rates and/or inflation may have an adverse impact on served markets. In

order to manage this the Group has entered into long term borrowing arrangements.

Competlition risk
The Group manages competition risk through close attention to customer service levels and sourcing

compelitive products.

Financial risk
All key financial figures are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Price nisk
The Group faces increasing costs. The directors are of the opinion that the Group is well positioned to
manage these costs.

Future developments
With an experienced management team, a strong product porifolio, well invested asset bases and a
robust financial position, we remain confident in the continued success and development of the

business.

This report was approved by the board of directors on 15 May 2020 and signed on behalf of the board
by:

v

Mr G Helm
Director

Registered office:

Unit G16

River Bank Way
Lowfields Business Park
West Yorkshire

HX5 9DN
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Seal It Services Limited

Directors’ report

Year ended 31 March 2020

The directors present their report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Events after the reporting date

Health and safety is paramount to the business especially in a manufacturing environment. As part of
the preparations for ISO45001 the directors have overseen a complete review of the health and safety
within the group including the introduction of a health and safety committee with participation from all
levels of the organisation along with a review and update of all risk assessments. As a consequence
of these preparations the group were successfully Audited and achieved the prestigious 15045001
(Health and Safety) accreditation in April 2021." The UK Operations of the Group already holds
I1IS09001 (Customer Service and Quality Control) and 1SO 14001 (Environmental) and are audited
twice a Year by the Awarding Body. There are no outstanding Non- conformances or observations.
The UK operation is proud to now hold the three major standards for the Industry.

Post year end a lease was entered into in relation to Unit G20 with the option to purchase after 3
years.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's operalions expose it to a variely of financial risks that include the efiects of credit risk,
liquidity risk and exchange risk. The Group has in place a risk management programme that seeks lo
limit the adverse effects on the financiat performance of the Group by monitoring levels of exchange
exposure and credit risk.

Given the size of the Group, the directors have not delegated the responsibility of monitoring financial
risk management to a sub-committee of the board. The policies set by the board of directors are
implemented by the Group's finance department.

Directors
The directors who served the Group during the period were as follows:

Mr G Helm

Mr D Moore
Mr S Engineer
Mrs J Engineer

Strategic report
The strategic repori is included at pages 2 to 3.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the Financial
Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law, the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and applicable law.

Under Company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group.
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Seal It Services Limited

Directors' report (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are also required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information; and

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time the
financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
wilh the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Each of the persons who is a director al the date of approval of this report confirm that:

so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor
is unaware; and

each director has laken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

Auditor

The auditors, BDO Northern Ireland, have expressed lheir willingness to conlinue in office and a
resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the annual general meeting in accordance with
section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

This report was approved by the board of directors on 15 May 2020 and signed on behalf of the board

by:

v

Mr G Helm
Director

Registered office:

Unit G16

River Bank Way
Lowfields Business Park
West Yorkshire

HX5 9DN
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Tel: +44(0)28 9043 9009 Lindsay House
Fax: +44(0)28 9043 9010 10 Callender Street
www . bdoni.com Belfast

———————— BT1 5BN
Seal It Services Limited
independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited

Year ended 31 March 2020

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Seal It Services Limited (“the Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity,
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

The financial reporing framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as
regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion

» the financial slatements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent
Company'’s affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

o the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union;

+ the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006; and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs {UK)) and
applicable law. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemenls section of cur report. We are independent of
the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation 1o which the 1SAs (UK) require
us to report o you where:

+ the Direclors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

+ the Directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the Group or the Parent Company’s ahility to continue to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

BOG Horthern Delamd & partnerstug formied w angd undsr the laws GE Hortders irelane, 15 Ueeted 19 operdte v thim thie
intesational BDO peteagsk ol independiont neantear inng
ALAT OF Pl e S' arweS 15 0PN U N ot a1 onn tofistered oflice Lindsay Hews: 10 Callendher S5te o, Bellast, 8Tt 58N

EDAY Hor theeen Ireland w asthosised and regidabet by the Financ il € usduct Ae1honty Breoniict ssestnene basaness
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Seal It Services Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited
{continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

Other information
The Direclors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extent olherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be malerially
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to delermine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statemenls or a
material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report thal fact.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audil:

« the information given in the Strategic report and Directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic report and Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the

Strategic report and Direclors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act
2006 requires us o report to you if, in our opinion,

» adequale accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for
our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us,; or

« the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Seal It Services Limited

Independent auditor's report to the members of Seal It Services Limited
{continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Direclors' responsibilities statement, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial stalements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the
Parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial slatements as a whole
are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial stalements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website at: https:/iwww.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Parent Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an audilor's
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibilily to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent Company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for thie opinions we have formed.

Lawa Jaclgon

Laura S V Jackson, senior statutory auditor

For and on behalf of BDO Northern Ireland, statutory auditor
Lindsay House

10 Callender Street

Belfast

BT1 5BN

15 May 2020
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Seal it Services Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss and comprehensive income
Year ended 31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Continuing operations
Revenue 4 22,814,719 21,582,410
Cost of sales 14,895,003 14,859,612
Gross profit 7,919,716 6,722,798
Distribution costs 2,645,125 2,035,495
Administrative expenses 3,778,933 3,572,837
Other operating income {17,302) (56,984)
Operating profit 1,512,960 1,171,450
Finance costs 7 332,722 314,756
Profit before taxation 1,180,238 856,694
Taxation 9 321,906 214,903
Profit for the year 858,332 641,791
Other comprehensive income
Foreign exchange movement (104,816) 51,301
Total comprehensive income for the year 753,516 693,092
Attributable to:
Owners of the parent company 753,516 693,092

All the activities of the Group are from continuing operalions.

The notes on pages 14 to 45 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

31 March 2020

2020 2019
Note £ £

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 10 2,389,769 2,302,342
Property, plant and equipment 1" 5,285,237 5,432,807
Total non-current assets 7,675,006 7,735,249
Current assets
Inventory 13 2,802,663 3,047,060
Trade and other receivables 14 4,813,240 4,684,907
Cash and cash equivalents 15 73,519 856,184
Total current assets 7,689,422 8,588,151
Total assets 15,364,428 16,323,400
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 16 4,987,185 4,952,369
Deferred tax liabilities 18 170,834 143,170
Total non-current liabilities 5,158,019 5,095,539
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 16 2,912,069 3,919,460
Trade and other payables 17 3,003,426 3,771,003
Total current liabilities 5,915,495 7,690,463
Total liabilities 11,073,514 12,786,002
Net assets 4,290,914 3,537,398
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 19 100 100
Retained earnings 20 4,439,261 3,580,929
Foreign exchange reserve 20 (148,447) (43.631)
Total equity 4,290,914 3,537,398

These financial stalements were approved by the board of direclors and authorised for issue on 15
May 2020 and are signed on behalf of the board by:

v

Mr G Helm
Director

Caompany regisiration number: 04487206

The notes on pages 14 to 45 form part of these financial statements.
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Company statement of financial position
31 March 2020
2020 2019
Note £ £
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 4,507,727 4,652,755
Investments 12 542,340 542,340
Other receivables 14 3,728,568 3,728,568
Total non-current assets 8,778,635 8,923,663
Current assets
Inventory 13 2,593,120 2,719,735
Trade and other receivables 14 4,748,537 4,326,725
Cash and cash equivalents 15 - 830,201
Total current assets 7,341,657 7,876,661
Total assets 16,120,292 16,800,324
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 16 4,987,185 4,952,369
Deferred tax liabilities 18 170,834 143,170
Total nan-current liabilities 5,158,019 5,095,538
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 16 2,949,904 3,919,460
Trade and other payables 17 2,883,829 3,575,561
Total current liabilities 5,833,733 7,495,021
Total liabilities 10,991,752 12,590,560
Net assets 5,128,540 4,209,764
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital 19 100 100
Retained earnings 20 5,156,222 4,127,398
Foreign exchange reserve 20 {27,782) 82,266
Total equity 5,128,540 4,209,764

The profit for the financial year of the parent company was £1,028,824 (2019: £874,375)

These financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 15
May 2020 and are signed on behalf of the board by:

v

Mr G Helm
Director

Company registration number: 04487206
The notes on pages 14 to 45 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 March 2020

Page 12

At 1 April 2019
Profit for the year
Fareign currency loss

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
Foreign currency gain

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2019

Company statement of changes in equity

At 1 April 2019
Profit for the year
Foreign currency loss

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2020

At 1 April 2018
Profit for the year
Foreign currency gain

Total comprehensive income for the year
At 31 March 2019

Foreign
Issued share exchange Retained
capital reserve earnings Total equity
£ £ £ £
100 {43,631) 3,580,929 3,537,388
- - 858,332 858,332
- (104,816) - (104,816)
- {104,816) 858,332 753,516
100 (148,447) 4,439,261 4,290,914
Foreign
Issued share exchange Retained
capital reserve earnings Total equity
£ £ £ £
100 {94,932) 2,939,138 2,844,306
- - 641,791 641,731
- 51,301 - 51,301
- 51,301 641,79 693,092
100 {43,631) 3,580,928 3,537,398
Foreign
Issued share exchange Retained
capital reserve earnings Total equity
£ £ £ £
100 82,266 4,127,398 4,209,764
- (110,048) - (110,048)
- (110,048) 1,028,824 918,776
100 (27,782) 5,156,222 5,128,540
Foreign
Issued share exchange Retained
capital reserve earnings Total equity
£ £ £ £
100 118,437 3,253,023 3,371,560
- - 874,375 874,375
- (36,171) - (36,171)
- (36,171) 874,375 838,204
100 82,266 4,127,398 4,209,764

The notes on pages 14 to 45 form part of these financial statements,
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 March 2020
2020 2019
Mote £ £

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit after taxation 858,332 641,791
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 1 814,944 711,592
Net finance costs 7 332,722 314,756
Accrued expenses 121,702 170,175
Foreign currency (143,517) (16,227)
Tax on profit of ordinary activities ] 321,906 214,903

2,306,089 2,036,990
Changes in working capital:
Movement in inventory 244,397 (501,932)
Movement in trade and other receivables {1,265,324) 100,793
Movement in trade and other payables {922,691) 407,060
Cash generated from operations 362,471 2,042 911
Interest paid (218,848) (258,232)
Income tax paid {260,831) (182,667)
Net cash{outflow)/ inflow from operating
activities {117,208) 1,602,012
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition through business combinations = (29,048)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {343,594) (1,548,021)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (343,594) (1,577,069)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital repayment of finance lease repayments {201,890) (265,718)
Proceeds from parent company 473,785 918,110
Repayment of parent company loan {144,238) (102,392)
Proceeds from bank loans - 563,500
Repayment of bank loans {449,520) (431,249)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities {321,863) 682,251
Net {decrease)/fincrease in cash and cash
equivalents {782,665) 707,194
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 856,184 148,990
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 15 73,519 856,184

The notes on pages 14 to 45 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

General information

Seal It Services Limited is a Company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The
registered office of the Company is Unit G16, River Bank Way, Lowfields Business Park, West
Yorkshire, HX5 SON. The principal activity of the Company and ils Subsidiary is the manufaciure
and supply of building products and building chemicals.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on XX
Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set
out below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently for all years presented
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, which is also
the Group's functional currency. Amounts are rounded to the nearest pound, unless otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements of Seal It Services Limited have been prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with adopted IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It aiso requires Group management to exercise judgement
in applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas where significant judgements and
estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and their effect are disclosed in
note 2.

Going concern

On 11 March 2020, The World Health QOrganization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic. The
pandemic is significantly affecting the global economy due to the interruption or slowdown of
supply chains and the significant increase in economic unceriainty, which is apparent in more
volatile asset prices, exchange rates and a decrease in the long term interest rates.

While the financial impact on the Group is difficult to predict at this time the Directors have
ulilised available goevernment support such as the employer “furlough scheme™ and deferring
VAT and corporalion tax payments. The Directors have revised their cash flow forecasts and
budgels for the next 12 months to include estimates which the pandemic could have on results
and cash flows and will continue to manage the Group very closely and will adapt the business
plan as necessary to respond to the impact.

Based on the measures taken lo reduce costs, the directors believe that the group is well
positioned to return to full trading capacity once the period of uncertainty passes.

The parent company, Astral Poly Technik Limited, has pledged to support the company for a
period of at least 12 months from the date of the approval of the financial statements. The Group
has an amount owing to Astral Poly Technik Limited of £3,383,568 and they have confirmed they
will not recall this balance to such times as the Group has the adequate resources 1o repay this
balance. in addition to this the parent company has guaranieed USD$ 1,381,250 directly to the
bank in respect of the business loan and if the situation arises will support the company lo
provide additional guaraniees to the bank up to the full amount of GBP 4,211,960.
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Seal It Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

2.

Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

Having regard to these facts, the Directors have considered the potential implications for the
group and are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis. This assumes the company will continue in operation existence for at leasl twelve
months from the dale of approval of the financial statements while having adequate financial
resources {0 meet ils obligations when they fall due.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial stalements incorporate the financial statements of the Group and all
Group underiakings. Intercompany transactions and balances between the Group companies are
therefore eliminated in full. The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of
business combinations using the acquisition method. In the statement of financial position, the
acquirees identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The results of acquired operations are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the date on which control is oblained. They are
deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

Exemptions

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the
Companies Act and not presented an income statement, or statement of comprehensive income,
for the Company alone.

Revenue recognition
Performance obligations and timing of revenue recognition

The majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from selling goeds with revenue recognised at a
point in time when control of the goods has transferred to the customer. This is generally when
lhe goods are delivered to the customer. Delivery shall be deemed to have taken place:

« In the case of carriage arranged by the Company by ils own transport or otherwise, when
goods are taken from the vehicle al the delivery point in the United Kingdom specified in
writing by the Customer and agreed by the Campany prior to despatch.

s Inthe case of carriage arranged by the Customer by its own transport or otherwise when the
goods are loaded onto the vehicle used.

There is limited judgement needed in identifying the point control passes; once physical delivery
of the products to the agreed location has occurred, the Group no longer has physical
possession usually will have a present right to payment and retains none of the significant risks
and rewards of the goods in question.

Determining the transaction price

All of the Group's revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of
revenue to be earned from each contract is determined to reference to those fixed prices. Some
contracts provide customers with a limited right of return. Historical experience enables the
Group to estimate reliably the value of goods that will be returned and restrict the amount of
revenue that is recognised such that it is highly probable that there will not be a reversal of
previously recognised revenue when goods are returned.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Allocating amounts to performance obligations

For most contracts there is a fixed unit price for each product sold. Therefore, there is no
judgement involved in allocating the contract price to each unit ordered in such contracts. Where
a customer orders more than one product line, the Group is able to determine the split of the total
contract price between each product line by reference to each products standalone selling prices.

Interest expense recognition

Expense is recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest method, to the net
carrying amount of the financial liability.

Employee benefits: Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution plan. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate enfity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assels to
pay all employees the benefils relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense over the period of employee service.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Group is Pounds Sterling because that is the cuirency of the
primary economic environmant in which the Group operates. The Group's presentation currency
is Pounds Sterling.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transfated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dales of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the setilement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statemen,

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are translated into pounds sterling at rates
approximating to those ruling when the fransactions took place. All assets and liabilities of
overseas operations, including goodwill arising on the acquisition of those operations, are
franslated at the rate ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on translating the
opening net assets at opening rate and the results of overseas operations at actual rate are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign exchange reserve.
The USA Subsidiary was translated using the year end rate for consolidation purposes. The
following exchange rates were applied for £1 at 31 March:

2020 2019
United States dollar 1.23985 1.30305
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Property, plant and equipment
Owned assels

ltems of property, plant and equipment are slated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price of the assel and the costs
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. When parts of an
item of propery, plant and equipment have different useful lives, those components are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable thal future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Gains and losses on
disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds.

Leased assels

Leases under which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset are classified as finance leases. Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance
leases is recorded at fair value or, if lower, the present value of minimum lease payments at
inception of the lease, less depreciation and any impairment.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in the other long-term payables. The
interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset and lease term.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the eslimated useful lives of
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
the lease term. Freehold land is not deprecialed. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold Property - 4% Straight Line

Plant & Machinery - 12.5% - 20% Straight Line
Fixtures & Fittings - 20% Straight Line

Motor Vehicles - 25% Straight Line
Equipment - 20% - 33% Straight Line
Goodwill

Goadwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the lotal acquisition
date fair value of the identifiable assets, liabililies and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Where the fair value of
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid,
the excess is credited in full to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the
acquisition date in other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Investments

Fixed assel investments are slated at their purchase cost less any provision for diminution in
value. Investment income is included in the profit and loss account on an accrual basis.,

Impairment of non-current assets

Impairment tests on goodwill is undertaken annually at the financial year end. Other non-financial
assels are subject to impairment tests whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher of value in use and fair value less cosis to sell), the assel
is written down accordingly.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost is determined on the first
in first out basis. Cost comprises material costs, direct wages. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to completion and appropriate selling and distribution costs.
Provision is made, where necessary, for slow moving, obsolete and defective inventories,

Financial assets
Classificalion

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assels with fixed or determinable payments
that arise principally through the provision of services to customers. They are initially recognised
at fair value, and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
They are all included in current assets. Loans and receivables comprise mainly cash and cash
equivalents and trade and other receivables.

Impairment of financial assels

Impairment provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as significant
financial difficulties on the part of the counterparty or default or significant delay in payment} that
the Group will be unable to collect alt of the amounts due under the terms receivable, the amount
of such a provision being the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value
of the future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable.



Page 19
Seal It Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

2. Accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits. Short
term deposits are defined as deposits with an initial maturity of three months or less.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the
statement of cash flows.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial fiabilities include the following items:

Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
{net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income stalement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Income tax for the years presented comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised
in profit or loss.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The following temporary differences are not provided for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the
initial recognition of other assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit; nor
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they are unlikely to reverse in
the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expecied manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
exient that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assefs against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to seltle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investiments in subsidiaries
and associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.  Accounting policies (continued)
Share capital
Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they
do not meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group's ordinary shares
are classified as equity instrument.
Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's
financial stalemenis in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Group's
shareholders.

Fair value estimation

Fair values are estimated based on the fair value hierarchy of IFRS 13 which defines the different
levels of fair value as follows:

e quoted prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities (level 1).

« inputs other than quated prices included within level 1 that are observable for the assel or
liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2).

¢ inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The objective of the Group's capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains strong
credit ratings and capital ratios. This will ensure that the business is correctly supported and
shareholder value is maximised.

The Group manages its capital structure through adjustments that are dependent on economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may choose to change
or amend dividend payments to shareholders or issue new share capital to shareholders. There

were no changes to the objectives, policies or processed during the period ended 31 March
2020.

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2019

New standards impacting the Group that will be adopted in the annual financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2020 are:

+ |[FRS 16 Leases

This standard effective for the first time for periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2019 did not
have any effect on the Group's financial statements.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2019 (continued)

There are a number of new standards, amendments to new standards, and interpretations which
have been issued by the 1ASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the group has
decided not to adopt early. The most significant of these are as follows, which are all effective for
the period beginning 1 January 2020:

o IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements and IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors (Amendment - definition of material)

e IFRS 3 Business combinations (Amendment - definition of business)
» Revised conceptual framework for financial reporting

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new accounting standards and
amendments.

3. Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparalion of the Group’s financial stalements under IFRS requires the directors to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors including expectations of
future evenls that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The directors have considered that the following estimates or judgements likely to have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets (as detailed in note 11), are deprecialed at historical cost using a
straight-line method based on the estimated useful life, taking intc account any residual value.
The asset's residual value and useful life are based on the directors’ best estimates and are
reviewed, and adjusted if required, at each balance sheet dale.

Impairment of Goodwill

The estimate of future cash flows and determination of a suitable discount rate is further
discussed in note 10.

Impairment review

In view of the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic, the management has made a detailed
assessment of its liquidity position for the next one year and recoverability of Property, Plant and
Equipment, Investments, Trade Receivables and Inventories as at the balance sheet date. In
assessing the recoverability, the Company has considered internal and external information up to
the date of approval of these financial results and has concluded that there are no material
adjustments required in these financial results. However, the impact of the global health
pandemic may be different from that estimated at the date of approval of these financial results
and the Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to fulure economic
conditions
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4.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has disaggregated revenue into various categories in the following table which is
intended to depict how the nature, amount, timing and unceriainty of revenue and cash flows are

affected by economic date.

2020 2019
£ £
UK Sales 19,510,229 19,360,836
US sales 1,884,241 1,441,800
EU sales 1,250,962 730,034
Other 169,287 49 740
22,814,719 21,582 410

All sales relate to goods and the timing of the transfer of goods is on delivery to the customer

premises.

Expenses by nature

2020 2019
£ £

Raw materials and consumables used 13,687,960 13,896,858
Employee costs 3,588,786 3,085,832
Depreciation 814,944 711,594
Other sales expenses 522,040 345,673
Repairs 184,134 178,063
Other cost of sales 196,853 85,445
Transport 1,060,788 948,726
Finance costs 332,722 314,756
Foreign currency gains/(losses) {27,937) (25,989)
Other administrative costs 1,019,250 1,060,477
Rent and rates 281,594 181,265
Other income {26,653} (56,984)
21,634,481 20,725,716

Employees and directors

Staff members:

The average number of staff employed by the Group during the financial year amounted to:

2020 2019
£ £
Number of production staff 48 45
Number of distribution staff 1% 12
Number of administrative staff 51 53
Number of management staff 5 4
123 114

Out of the average staff numbers 17 (2019:11) are employed by the subsidiary Seal It Inc.
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Employees and directors (continued)
Payroll costs:

The aggregate payroll costs of the ahove were:

2020 2019

£ £
Wages and salaries 3,240,417 2,762,756
Employers' national insurance contributions and similar taxes 298,254 270,402
Defined contribution pension cost 50,115 52,674

3,588,786 3,085,832

Directors’ remuneration:

The directors' aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services were;

2020 2019

£ £
Remuneration receivable 266,514 237,036
Defined contribution pension cost 12,841 39,690

279,355 276,728

Remuneration of highest paid director:

2020 2019

£ £
Remuneration receivable 152,479 112,479
Defined contribution pension costs 7,988 20,583

160,467 133,062

The number of directors who accrued benefits under Company pension schemes was as follows:

2020 2019
No. No.
Money purchase schemes 2

Key management compensation:

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group, both directly and indirectly.

The following table details the aggregate compensation paid in respect of the members of key
management;

2020 2019

£ £
Remuneration receivable 266,514 237,036
Defined contribution pension cost 12,841 39,690

279,355 276,726

Retirement benefits:
The Group runs a defined benefit pension scheme for its employees. During the year, the Group
made contributions of £50,115 (2019: £52,674).
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7. Finance costs

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
and other similar charges
Finance leases (interest portion}

8. Auditors remuneration

Auditors remuneration:
- as auditor

Other services:

- taxation services

9. Taxation
Major components of tax expense

(a)Analysis of charge in the year

Current tax;
In respect of the year:

Current tax based on the results for the year at 19%
{2019 - 19%)
Over provision in prior year

Total current tax
Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Effect of tax rate change on opening balances
Adjustments in respect of prior periods’

Total tax charge

2020 2019

£ £
235,252 218,015
97,470 96,741
332,722 314,756
2020 2019

£ £
20,000 20,000
2,000 2,000
22,000 22,000
2020 2019

£ £
302,702 222,316
(8,460) (9,102)
294,242 213,214
(10,560) (5,503)

19,094

19,130 7,192
321,906 214,903
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9. Taxation (continued)
(b) Factors affecting current tax charge

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary aclivities for the year is higher than the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2019 - 19%).

2020 2019
£ £
Profit before taxation 1,180,238 1,002,229
Profit by rate of corporation tax in UK 224,245 190,424
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 596 2,821
Surplus of depreciation over capital allowances 25,812 22,922
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous
periods (8,460) (9,102)
Unrelieved foreign tax losses 30,942 -
Deferred tax — fixed asset timing difference 38,224 7.838
Transfer pricing adjustment 10,547 -
Total tax charge 321,906 214,903
10. Intangible assets
Goodwill
£

Cost *
At 1 April 2019 2,302,342
Additions acquired through business combinations 87,427
At 31 March 2020 2,389,769
Amortisation and impairment -
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 -
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2020 2,389,769
At 31 March 2019 2,302,342

The Group is required to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment.
The recoverable amount is determined based on value in use calculations. The use of this
method requires the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of the cash flows. Management are of the view that no
indicators of impairment were noted as at the 31 March 2020 and this will be re-assessed
annually going forward.
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1.

Intangible assets (continued)

Management reviews the business performance based on operating segments identified as UK &
Ireland and the US. Goodwill with indefinite useful lives are monitored by management at
operaling segment level. All of the goodwill is within the US segment. The recoverable amount of
all cash generaling units (CGUs) has been determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the
long term average growth rate for the sealant business in which the CGU operates. The key
assumptions used for value in use calculations were as follows:

Compound revenue growth 10%
Long term growth rate 10%
Discount rate 3%

Management determined budgeled gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations of market development. The growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts
included in industry reports. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant operating segments. Management have considered the sensitivity of these
assumptions and consider lhat no reasonable changes in the assumptions would lead to an
impairment of the intangible assets.

In the previous year the Group acquired the business and assets of another company. An
additional amount of goodwill arose on the acquisition of £87,427.

Property, plant and equipment

Group
Leasehold Plant & Fixtures & Motor
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At1 Apr 2019 3,298,566 4,835,134 469,158 105,182 244,475 B,952,515
Additions 23,766 509,827 25,595 18,535 50,851 628,574
Disposals - - - {15,900) - (15,900}
FX 4,505 53,369 - - 678 58,552

At 31 Mar 2020 3,326,837 5,398,330 494,753 107,817 296,004 9,623,741

Depreciation

At 1 Apr 2019 382,729 2,640,331 226,585 79,195 190,768 3,519,608
Charge for year 140,347 578,643 44 294 8,272 43,388 814,944
Disposals - - - (10,335) - {10,335)
FX 584 13,168 - - 535 14,287

At 31 Mar 2020 523,660 3,232,142 270,879 77,132 234,691 4,338,504

Net book value
At 31 Mar 2020 2,803,177 2,166,188 223,874 30,685 61,313 5,285,237

At 31 Mar 2019 2,915,837 2,194,803 242,573 25,987 53,706 5,432,907
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Group
Leasehold Plant & Fixtures & Motor
Property Machinery Fittings Vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 Apr2018 2,375,762 4,082,397 421,184 105,182 210,698 7,195,223
Additions 916,896 699,698 47,367 - 11,062 1,675,023
Acquisitions - - - - 22,404 22,404
FX 5,908 53,039 607 - 31 59,865
At 31 Mar 2019 3,298,566 4,835,134 469,158 105,182 244,475 8,952,515
Depreciation
At 1 Apr2018 255,252 2,136,529 174,865 69,518 164,643 2,800,807
Charge for year 127,107 497,342 51,720 9,677 25,746 711,594
FX 370 6,460 - - 380 7.210

At 31 Mar 2019 382,729 2,640,331 226,585 79,195 190,768 3,519,608

Net book value
At 31 Mar 2019 2,915,837 2,194,803 242,573 25,987 53,706 5,432,907

Al 31 Mar 2018 2,120,510 1,945,868 246,319 35,664 46,055 4,394,416

Finance lease commitments

Included within the net book value of £ 5,285,237 is £494,028 (2019: £220,637) relating o assets
held under finance lease commitments. The depreciation charged to the financial statements in
the year in respect of such assets amounted to £65,656 (2019: £288,231).

Capital commitments
2020 2019
£ £
Coniracted but not provided for in the financial
statements 132,000 300,000
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11.

Praperty, plant and equipment (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 Apr 2019
Additions
Disposals

At 31 Mar 2020

Depreciation
Al 1 Apr 2019
Charge for the
year
Disposals

At 31 Mar 2020

Net book value
At 31 Mar 2020

At 31 Mar 2019

Company

Cost
At 1 Apr 2018
Additions

At 31 Mar 2019

Depreciation

Al 1 Apr 2018

Charge for the
year

At 31 Mar 2019

Net book value
At 31 Mar 2019

At 31 Mar 2018

Leasehold Plant & Fixtures & Motor
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
3,210,019 3,952,338 468,551 105,182 209,363 7,945,453
23,858 417,009 25,595 18,535 50,851 535,848
- - = (15,900) - (15,900)
3,233,877 4,369,347 494,146 107,817 260,214 8,465,401
372,998 2,432,777 226,585 79,195 181,143 3,292,698
135,855 453,042 44,294 8,272 33,848 675,311
- - = (10,335) - {(10,335)
508,853 2,885,819 270,879 77,132 214,991 3,957,674
2,725,024 1,483,528 223,267 30,685 45,223 4,507,727
2,837,021 1,519,561 241,966 25,987 28,220 4,652,755
Leasehold Plant & Fixtures & Motor
Property Machinery Fittings  Vehicles Equipment Total
£ £ £ £ £ £
2,298,583 3,383,569 421,184 105,182 198,699 6,407.217
911,436 568,769 47,367 - 10,664 1538,236
3,210,019 3,952,338 468,551 105,182 209,363 7,945453
250,148 2,046,911 174,865 69,518 159,216 2,700,658
122,850 385,866 51,720 9,677 21,927 592,040
372998 2432777 226,585 79,195 181,143 3,292,698
2,837,021 1,519,561 241,966 25,987 28,220 4,652,755
2,048,435 1,336,659 246,319 35,664 39,482 3,706,559
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12.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Finance lease commitments

Included within the net book value of £4,507,727 is (2019: £220,637) relaling to assels held
under finance lease commitments. The depreciation charged to the financial statements in the
year in respect of such assets amounted to £65,656 (2019: £288,231).

Capital commitments
2020 2019
£ £
Contracted but not provided for in the financial
statements 132,000 300,000

Bank borrowings are secured over the freehold properly known as Units G16, G17 and G18 and
asset Finance is subject to title of the assets.

Investments

Company Group
companies

£

Cost

At 1 April 2019 542,340

Additions -

Disposals -

Net book value

At 31 March 2020 542,340

At 31 March 2019 542,340

The sole subsidiary of Seal It Services Ltd, which has been included in these consclidated
financial statements, is as follows:

Country of Proportion of Nature of
incorporation voting rights and business
shares held
Seal It Inc USA 100% Manufacturing

The registered office of Seal It Inc is: 3301 Industrial Drive, Sanford, NC 27332,
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Group
2020 2019
£ £
Raw materials 4,336,799 1,616,351
Work in progress 34,237 51,067
Finished goods 1,431,627 1,379,642

2,802,663 3,047,060

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales amounted to
£13,687,960 (2019: £13,896,858).

Company
2020 2019
£ £
Raw materials 1,261,644 1,436,151
Work in progress 28,026 42,519
Finished goods 1,303,450 1,241,065

2,593,120 2,719,735

14, Trade and other receivahles

Group

2020 2019

£ £

Trade receivables 4,295,233 4,377,798
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (36,799) (39,571)
Trade receivables — net 4,258,434 4,338,227
Total financial assets other than cash and cash
equivalents classified as amortised cost 4,258,434 4,338,227
Other receivables 389,186 222872
Prepayments and accrued income 165,620 123,808
Total trade and other receivables 4,813,240 4,684,907

All trade and receivables are due within one year. Trade and other receivables are held at cost
as fair value approximates cost. Trade and other receivables are considered past due once they
have passed their contracted due date. Trade receivables are reviewed for impairment if they are
past due beyond 90 days.
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14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

The carrying value of trade and other receivables classified at amortised cost approximates fair
value,

At 31 March 2020, £2,148,035 (2019: £3,402,180) had been sold to a provider of invoice
discounting and debt factoring services. The Group is committed to underwrite any of the debts
transferred and therefore continues to recagnise the debis sold within trade receivables until the
debtors repay or default. Since the trade receivables continue lo be recognised, the business
model of the Group is not affected.

The expected loss rales are based on the Group’s historical credit losses experienced over the
three-year period prior to the period end. The historical loss rates are then adjusted for current
and forward-locking information on macroeconomic factors affecling the Group's customers. The
Group has identified the gross domeslic product (GDP), unemployment rate and inflation rate as
the key macroeconomic factors in the countries where the Group operates.

The canrying amounts of the Group’s lrade and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

2020 2019

£ £
Sterling 3,965,847 4,326,725
US Dollars 292,587 358,182

4,258,434 4,684,907

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
At 1 April 2019 39,571 10,975
{Decrease)/ Increase in provision for receivables
impairment (2,772) 28,596
At 31 March 2020 36,799 39,571

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in
‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security,

At 31 March 2020, trade receivables of £Nil (2019: £27,009) were past due but not impaired.
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14. Trade and other receivables (continued}

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months
3 to 6 months
Over 6 months

At 31 March

2020 2019
£ £

- 27,009

- 27,009

At 31 March 2020, trade receivables of £36,799 (2019: £39,571) were impaired. The ageing

analysis of lhese trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 3 months
3 1o 6 months
Qver 6 manths

At 31 March

Company

Trade receivables

Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables — net
Receivables from group companies

Total financial assets other than cash and cash

equivalents classified as amortised cost

Other receivables
Prepayments and accrued income

Total trade and other receivables

Less: non-currert portion — receivables from
group companies

Current Portion

2020 2019

£ £
2,683 -
34,116 39,571
36,799 39,571
2020 2019

£ £
3,989,642 4,047,446
(23,795)  (31,801)
3,965,847 4,015,645
3,866,426 3,728,568
7923273  7.744213
389,186 211,673
155,646 99,407
8,477,105 8,055,293
3728568 3,728,568
4,748,537 4,326,725

Current trade and other receivables are held at cost as fair value approximates cost. Trade and
other receivables are considered past due once they have passed their contracted due date.

Trade receivables are reviewed for impairment if they are past due beyond 90 days.
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14. Trade and other receivables (continved)

The amounts receivable from group companies are due for repayment after one year from 31
March 2020. The terms of the loan carry an interest charge of 3%, £59,205, which has been
charged to the company profit and loss during the year.

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

2020 2018

£ £
Sterling 4,510,679 4,326,725
US Dollars 3,966,426 3,728,568

8,477,105 8,055,293

Movements on the company's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
At 1 April 2019 31,801 10,975
{Decrease)fincrease in provision for receivables
impairment {8,006) 20,826
At 31 March 2020 23,795 31,801

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in
‘administrative expenses’ in the income statement. Amounts charged to the allowance account
are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporling date is the carrying value of each class of
receivables mentioned above. The company does not hold any collateral as security.

At 31 March 2020, trade receivables of £13,062 (2019: £23,527) were past due bul not impaired.
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default,

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
Up to 3 months - -
3 to 6 months 13,062 23,627

Over 6 months - -
At 31 March 13,062 23,527
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14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

At 31 March 2020, trade receivables of £23,795 (2019: £31,801) were impaired. The ageing
analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
Up to 3 months . -
3 to 6 months 23,795 31,801
Qver 6 months = -
At 31 March 23,795 31,801

15. Cash and cash equivalents
Group

2020 2019

£ £
Cash and cash equivalents 73,519 856,184

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in either £ Sterling or $ USD. Included within cash
and cash equivalents is an overdraft balance of £37,835 denominated in £ Sterling and £111,354
denominated in $ USD.

Company
2020 2019
£ £
Cash and cash equivalenls 830,201

Bank Overdraft {37,835) -
(37,835) 830,201

All cash and cash equivalents are denominated in £ Sterling.

16. Loans and borrowings

Group
2020 2019
£ £
Non-current
Bank borrowings 1,447,802 1,918,896
Loans from parent company 3,383,568 2,940,147
Finance leases 155,815 93,326

Total non-current loans and borrowings 4,987,185 4,952,369
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16. Loans and borrowings (continued)
2020 2019
£ £

Current
Bank borrowings
Finance leases

Total current loans and borrowings

Total loans and beorrowings

2,764,158 3,792,149
147,911 127,311

2,912,069 3,919,460
7,899,254 8,871,829

£668,374 (2019: £862,084) of the loans and borrowings are denominated in $ USD with all other
amounts denominated in £ Sterling. Finance leases are secured against the assets which they
were used to acquire. The interest rate profile of interest bearing borrowings is as follows:

2020
Debt £ Interest %

Non-current
Bank borrowings 1,447,802 2.3%
Loans from parent company 3,383,568 3.0%
Finance leases 155,815 10.0%

4,987,185
Current
Bank borrowings 2,764,158 2.3%
Finance leases 147,911 10.0%

2,912,069

The carrying amount and fair values of the non-current borrowings are follows:

2020
Debt £ Fair value £
Non-current

Bank borrowings 1,447,802 1,254,161
Loans from parent company 3,383,568 2,931,970
Finance leases 155,815 128,773

2019
Debt £ Interest %
1,918,896 2.3%
2,940,147 3.0%
93,326 10.0%
4,952,369
3,792,149 2.3%
127,311 10.0%
3,919,460
2019

Debt £ Fair value £

1,918,896 1,658,146
2,940,147 2,547,731
93,326 77,129

4,987,185 4,314,904

2020
Debt £ Fair value £
Current
Bank borrowings 2,764,158 2,764,158
Finance leases 147,91 147,911

4,952,369 4,283,006

2019
Debt £ Fair value £

3,792,145 3,792,149
127,311 127,311

2,912,069 2,912,069

3,919,460 3,919,460
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16. Loans and borrowings (continued)

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant. The fair values of non-current borrowings are determined using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing
rates noted above.

The malurity profile of loans and borrowings is as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
Less than one year 2,912,069 3,919,460
Between one and five years 4,444 328 4,481,385
Qver five years 542,847 470,984
Total loans and borrowings 7,899,254 8,871,829
Company
2020 2019
£ £
Non-current
Bank borrowings 1,447,802 1,918,896
Loans from parent company 3,383,568 2,940,147
Finance leases 155,815 93,326
Total non-cutrent loans and borrowings 4,987,185 4,952,369
2020 2019
£ £
Current
Bank overdraft 37,835 -
Bank borrowings 2,764,158 3,792,149
Finance leases 147,911 127,311
Total current loans and barrowings 2,949,904 3,919,460
Total loans and borrowings 7,937,089 8,871,829

£668,374 (2019: £834,859) of the loans and borrowings are denominated in $ USD with all other
amounts denominated in £ Sterling.
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16. Loans and borrowings (continued)

Finance leases are secured against the assels which they were used to acquire. The interest
rate profile of interest bearing borrowings is as follows:

2020 2019
Debt £ Interest % Debt £ Interest %

Non-current
Bank borrowings 1,447,802 2.3% 1,918,896 2.3%
Loans from Group undertakings 3,383,568 3.0% 2,940,147 3.0%
Finance leases 155,815 10.0% 93,326 10.0%

4,987,185 4,952 369
Current
Bank overdraft 37,835 0.0% - -
Bank borrowings 2,764,158 2.3% 3,792,149 2.3%
Finance leases 147,911 10.0% 127,311 10.0%

2,949,904 3,919,460

The carrying amount and fair values of the non-current borrowings are follows:

2020 2019
Debt £ Fair value £ Debt £ Fair value £

Non-current

Bank borrowings 1447,802 1,254,161 1,918,896 1,658,146
Loans from parent company 3,383,568 2,931,970 2,940,147 2,547,731
Finance leases 155,815 128,773 93,326 77,129

4,987,185 4,314,904 4,952,369 4,283,006

2020 2019
Debt £ Fair value £ Debt £ Fair value £
Current
Bank overdraft 37,835 37,838 - -
Bank borrowings 2,764,158 2,764,158 3,792,149 3,792,149
Finance leases 147,911 147,911 127,311 127.311

2,949,904 2,948,904 3,919,460 3,919,460

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is
not significant. The fair values of non-current borrowings are determined using Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy and are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing
rates noted above.
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16.

Laoans and borrowings {continued)

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings is as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
Less than one year 2,949,904 3,919,460
Between one and five years 4,444,338 4,481,385
Over five years 542,847 470,984
Total loans and borrowings 7,937,089 8,871,829

Bank borrowings for the company and group are secured by the following:

First legal mortgage over the freehold property known as Units G16, G17 and G18.

Debenture comprising fixed and floating charges over all the assets and undertakings the
Parent company including all present and future freehold and leasehold property, book and

other debts chattels, goodwill both present and future.
General letter of pledge given by the Parent Company.
Contact monies charge given by the Parent Company.

Loan Poslponement form given by Astral Poly Technik Limited.

Unlimited multilateral cross company guarantee given by the Parent company and the

Subsidiary.

Parent Company Guarantee given by Astral Poly Technik Ltd to secure the Business Loan of

$1,361,250.
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17. Trade and other payables
Group

Current
Trade payables
Other payables
Accruals

Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and
borrowings, classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost

Corporation tax
Other taxation and social security

Total trade and other payables

Company

Current
Trade payables
Other payables
Accruals

Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and
borrowings, classified as financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost

Corporation tax
Other taxation and social security

Total trade and other payables

2020 2019

£ £
1,664,091 2,730,504
167,042 5,730
532,920 411,216
2,364,053 3,147,450
191,350 157,939
448,023 465,614
3,003,426 3,771,003
2020 2019

£ £
1,582,562 2,566,671
148,442 5,730
513,452 386,064
2,244 456 2,958,465
191,350 157,939
448,023 459,157
2,883,829 3,575,561

The carrying value of trade and other payables classified as financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost approximates fair value.
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18.

19.

20.

Deferred taxation
The movement in the deferred taxation provision during the year was:

Group and company

2020 2019

£ £
Provision brought forward 143,170 141,181
Increase/ (Decrease) in provision 27,664 1,989
Provision carried forward 170,834 143,170

The Group's provision for deferred taxation consists of the tax effect of timing differences in
respect of:

2020 2019

Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided
Group and Company £ £ £ £
Excess of taxation allowances over
depreciation on fixed assets 170,834 - 143,170 -
Share capital
Group and Company
Allotted, called up and fully paid:

2020 219
No £ No £
X Ordinary shares of £1 each 80 80 B0 80
Y Ordinary shares of £1 each 20 20 20 20
100 100 100 100

The nominal value of each share is £1 and each class of ordinary shares carries equal rights and
rank pari passu with each other.

Reserves
The following describes the narrative and purpose of each reserve within equity:
Foreign Exchange Reserve

Gains and losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas operations into Pounds
Sterling.

Relained Eamings

All other net gains and fosses nol recognised elsewhere.
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20. Reserves (continued)

Foreign
exchange Retained
reserve earnings
Group £ £
Balance at 1 April 2019 (43,631) 3,580,929
Profit for the year - 858,332
Fareign exchange reserve {104,816) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 {148,447) 4,439,261
Foreign
exchange Retained
reserve earnings
Group £ £
Balance at 1 April 2018 {94,932) 2,939,138
Profit for the year - 641,791
Foreign exchange reserve 51,301 -
Balance at 31 March 2019 (43,631) 3,580,929
Foreign
exchange Retained
reserve earnings
Company £ £
Balance at 1 April 2019 82,266 4,127,398
Profit for the year - 1,028,824
Foreign exchange reserve {110,048) -
Balance at 31 March 2020 {27,782) 5,156,222
Foreign
exchange Retained
reserve earnings
Company £ £
Balance at 1 April 2018 118,437 3,253,023
Profit for the year - 874,375
Foreign exchange reserve (36,171} -
Balance at 31 March 2019 82,266 4,127,398

In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the
company has not presented its own profit and loss account.
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21.

Financial instruments - risk management
Financial risk management

The Group's activilies expose il lo a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in
market prices (including foreign exchange and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is camied out by the board of direclors. The company has in place a risk
management programme that seeks to limit the adverse effects on the financial performance of
the company by monitoring levels of debt finance and the related finance costs.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy customers. All customers who wish to trade
on credit are subject to credit verification checks. Customer balances are checked regularly to
ensure that the risk of exposure to bad debts is minimised. The Group does not hold any security
over assets as collateral,

At 31 March 2020 the provision for impairment of trade and other receivables totalled £36,799. At
31 March 2020, there were no trade and other receivables which were considered past due but
not impaired.

Market risk

The Group's main exposure to risk is through interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises
from the borrowings as disclosed in Note 16. Where possible the Group seeks to fix the interest
rates that it pays to mitigate the risk of interest rate fluctuations.

Liquidity risk
The Group has given responsibility of liquidity risk management to the board who have

formulated liquidity management tools to service this requirement. Moniloring budgets and
forecasts and actual cash flows achieve management of liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of loans and borrowings and trade and other payables is as follows:
Financial liabilities have the following undiscounted maturity profile:

Less than  Between
1 year 1 & 5 years Over 5 years

£ £ £
At 31 March 2020
Loans and borrowings 2,912,069 4,444 338 542,847
Accruals 532,920 - -
Trade payables 1,664,091 - =

5,109,080 4,444,338 542,847
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21.

22,

Financial instruments — risk management (confinued}

At 31 March 2019
Accruals

Loans and borrowings
Trade payables

Capital management

Less than t Between 1 Betweaen 3
year and 3 years and 5years Over5 years
£ £ £ £
411,216 = = -
3,919,460 1,082,895 3,398,490 470,984
2,730,504 - = -
7,061,180 1,082,895 3,398,490 470,984

The aim of the Group is to maintain sufficient funds to enable it to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concem and to make suitable investments and incremental acquisitions while

providing returns for shareholders.
Financial instruments
a) By category

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Financial fiabilities

Trade payables

Accruals

Loans from Group undertakings
Bank borrowings

Finance leases

b} Analysis of Fair values

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

2020 2019
£ £
73,519 856,184
4,258,434 4,338,227
4,331,953 5,194,411
2020 2019
Financial Financial
liabilities at  Financial liabilities at Financial
amortised liabilities at amortised liabilities at
cost fair value cost fair value
£ £ £ £
1,664,091 - 2,730,504 -
532,290 - 411,218 -
3,383,568 - 2,940,147 -
4,211,960 - 5,711,045 -
303,726 - 220,637 -
10,095,635 - 12,013,549 -
2020 2019
£ £
73,519 856,184
4,258,434 4,338,227
4,331,953 5,194,411
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22. Financial instruments (continued)

2020 2019
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost Fair values cost Fair values
£ £ £ £

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables {excluding
non-financial liabilities) 2,364,053 2,364,053 3,147,450 3,147,450
Loans from Group undertakings 3,383,568 2,931,970 2,940,147 2,535,145
Bank borrowings 4,211,960 4,018,319 5,711,045 4 882,014
Finance leases 303,726 276,684 220,637 210,441

10,263,307 9,691,026 12,013279 10,775,050

Financial instruments not measured at fair value includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, loans from Group undertakings, bank borrowings
and finance leases.

Due to their short term nature the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

For details of the fair value hierarchy, valuation techniques, and significant observable inputs

related to determining the fair value of loans and borrowings, which are classified in level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy, refer to Note 18.

23. Leases
Group and Company
Commitments under finance lease agreements

Future commitments under finance lease agreements are as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
Amounts payable within 1 year 160,564 127,311
Amounts payable between 1 and 2 years 159,495 93,326

320,059 220,637
Less interest and finance charges relating to future
periods {16,333) (10,196)

Present value of finance lease liabilities 303,726 210,441

The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows:

2020 2019

£ £
No later than 1 year 147,911 120,661
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 155,815 89,780

303,726 210,441
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24. Related party transactions

At the year end, Seal it Services Limited owe the following o related parties:

2020 2019
E £
Astral Poly Technik Limited 3,383,568 2,940,147

25.

26.

The increase in amounts owed to Asiral Poly Technik Limited, the parent Company, result from
further loans of £473,785. Loans were made on an arm's length basis. During the year accrued
interest charges amounted to £113,874 and repayments in the period amounted to £144,238.

Details of directors’ remuneration and key management compensation payable by the Group
during the period are disclosed in Note 6.

The Group entered into an incentive agreement with one of the directors of which £100,000 was
paid during the year and £50,000 to be paid in August 2020 and £50,000 in April 2021 provided
certain criteria are met. £20,000 of this has been accrued at year end.

No other transactions with related parties were undertaken such as are required to be disclosed
under IAS 24.

Prior year balances

Certain prior year balances have been reclassified for comparative purposes.

Ultimate parent company

The immediate and ultimate parent Company is Astral Poly Technik Limited from this date. The
consolidated results of Seal It Services Limited are included with the Group accounts of Astral

Poly Technik Limited which are publicly available from Astral Poly Technik Limited, 207/1, Bh.
Rajpath Club, Off SG Highway, Ahmedabad.



